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WINNING ATTITUDE. By working together, we
celebrate successes, welcemme new challenges,
realize - and esiceed - the goals we set out to achieve,

ErFiciENCY. Qur strong work ethie, results-
oriented culture, great preduct mix and ability
to grow revenue while streamlining expenses
provide us with a competitive advantage.
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sive, competitive sales culture.
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INTEGRITY. We pride ourselves on our hones:
respect for others and a refusal to be anythi

less than totally responsible forouraction:

INCLUSIVE RELATIONSHIPS. The:Charter: O
team values, supports and encourages the contr

butions of all employees. ..

CoMMUNITY COMMITMENT, We strive to be
invelved in our communities by providing afford-
able financial products and services and by
infusing our internal “Charter One community”
with a strong sense of purpose and mainte-

nance of inclusive relationships.
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about CHARTER ONE

Headquartered in Cleveland, Ohio, Charter One is
one of the best retail banks in the country,
focusing on the financial needs of the average
consumer and local small- to medium-sized busi-
nesses. Ranking among the 25 largest banks in
the U.S., it operates through 461 retail banking
centers located in Ohio. Illinois, Michigan, New
York, Vermont and Massachusetts. The Company’s
diverse product set includes: consumer banking,
indirect auto finance, commercial leasing, business
lending, commercial real estate lending, mortgage

banking, and retail investment products.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(dollars in wiousands, except per sharg data) : 2002 i w 2001 2000 ﬁ
Net interest income ¢ §$1.169,830 - 904186 $ 903,035

Other income . 547,546 } 473,624 392,871

Administrative expénses f 678972 - 629,662 603,955

Net income : 577668 . | . 500,714 433,962

Diluted earnings per share'! 245 1 2.10 1.81

Return on average assets R 1.47% e 1.41%- I 17376%7 N |
Return an average equity 19.38% = 18.17% ‘ 18.00% ;
Return on average tangiblelequity 5 2231% ¢ : 20.25% 19.99%

Efficiency ratio ; 3954% 41.91% 45.68%

Total assels S a0 SBAMSI6 SR

Loans and leases, net 26,204,738 . 25,728,700 - 24,008,174

Total deposits 27,527,843 25,123,309 19,605,671

Shareholders’ equity ' : 3,083,825 2,928,500 2,456,204
§r{ér€r}8|hé}s' equi{y t0 assets W7.’367% . 7.67% . 7.45'% 7
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$41.98B

$38.2.8 I

$33.08
$31.88

33058

$275B
$§2518
$1968
$19.18B

$19.08

40%
42%
46%
51%

58%

i DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

! RETURN ON EQUITY

1.47%
1.41%
1.36%
1.08%
0.82%

19.38%
18.17%
18.00%
13.50%
10.26%
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sl We hit nearly every goal we set for ourselves in 2@_@& =

-~ and our performance stands tall next to any E@@Gf’r’
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2003 and beyond.
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~our thrift heritage behind. We have clarified our niche,
—and-are-belng described-as—a-high-performing retafl

Converted to-a-national bank @h@ﬁ@w officlally leaving - |-

g0©d]w expense n 2002, @@mﬁmga pers ghan‘e would d have-
been up 13%. Once again we followed the time-praven

adage of growing revenue faster than expenses. Our
" basie business plan | Kas remained dedicated to that goal =
?cxr meanly & decade. Charter One's cost culture Eﬁmg long™
[b@@m n“@@ogmﬁm@] as among the best in banki ing. But the
 focus of our plam h@ss umﬂy been” top-line revenue. TH@
@iﬁﬁlg@h@@ﬁa om core deposit growth and household acqul-
sition helps drive retall banking revenue and sUppert
net Interest-income. while-increasing-the mﬂm of-our

-~ obsessive focus on efficlency.” Emenging carly in the

—<year-as-a-mewly minted: national-bank led to & 'gﬁ?é‘@jﬁ*

—hank that couples superior—sales-execution-with-an—

products they- need, We- continue- to-work-diligently-te

—franchise, On-—the lending side; we CILT’ﬁ\WG FevenuE b;y :
dealing directly with customers and providing the

deaﬂ of - positive. m@@g@ﬁtﬁ@m for- much of- whm wWe've
beom workiig on 107 several years, During 200 f I
American_Banker horm@ ach us vb @cuﬁmg us. as
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—remix ﬁﬂﬂ@ ﬂ@a@ poﬁr{F@U ©; movi tmg ‘away from-single-family-
1= loans s yet F‘GU@] ining & concentration In consumer-oriented —

@f@@@cﬁ@ Over time, we believe our cost efficiency. and
retail focused strategy will deliver the best value to all of
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Bank Universs Index f@uuf@@d 26% @md Lﬁh@ S&P @ll 0 lost 40%.
We belisve & long track F@@@[Td of consistent, high-quality
sarnings growth is the suyeRiy ﬁzamt driver of stock apa
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retall customers, =
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- The successful execution of otr business plan is based on our

=

/3 position as one of the industry’s low-cost providers. We enjoy
O as much as a 15 point advantage over our peers, enabling us to
N gensrate higher sarnings with lower ievels of financial and

credit risk. But cost control is only part of the story. Qur highly
efficient operation is also the piatform of our consumer
banking strategy; it provides us with a tremendous pricing
ad\;am’ége that we use every day to aggressively compete for
loans and deposits, grow revenues, capture new households
and huild market share. The final component that helps explain
why revenues grow faster than expenses at Charter One is our
emplovees. Last year, net income ger Charter One employee
was $83,000 compared to $50,000 for our peers. Put simply,

Charter One empioyees deliver.
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followed 1 up b by very. targeted @ﬁﬁeﬂmgs that encourage
wtilization. The aute portfolie turned out to be an out-

believe our approach to strict credit control and extremely

low eperating costs provides a nice short-term asset that ™|~

beats the optio om@ﬂ'hry of residential m@rﬁrg@;@@ We ended. _
%-of-our loan-portfolio tm—.

~2002 with- approximately—=3

performer as well, posting growth of nearly 30%. We anm mmx’f‘@ﬂﬁ@w g@( n“orﬁl éjl% at uh@ @m«ﬂ o{? 2000

of 2002, ﬁmr f@pms@m@d f 24% of @w "rowu

" single-family morigages. Looking oUt @ (ew years, we
think that can be Lr@@ﬂ@@eaﬂ @ 15%.

Of course, portfo.lo g gmwﬁh at any cost can end up costing
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store sales; That same-store sales growth equates toa
28% increase in deposits away from acquisitions and
building new branches. Clearly, this is one of the best ——

great deal if the eredit profile- erodes. Given all the |

track Fecords i the country. During 2002, we. focused

) u@mwﬁﬂ in the economy during 2002, we were extremely
happy with the performance of our lending operations.
Overall charge-offs came In at .48% of average loans
for the year, including $27 million in accelerated”
charge-offs related to a change in policy assoclated with
our charter conversion. Absent that change in poliey, our

|- mest h@@vﬂﬂy on- adding-core_deposits, or deposits B
@h@ckﬁmgp mom@y s market and savings accounts: The g d@@ﬂ -

charge-off ratio would have been a very respectable and

is to reach new households and attract that household's
primary account. Our eore deposits increased more than
$3. billion, up more than 20%! n additien to bullding
franchise value; this depesit growth fueled @ “4% ﬂmcw@?\@@

im d@pogﬂwoﬂaﬁed revenue. e
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systems, accountability on both an mdlwdual and office- Wlde |
basis, employee training and sharing of best practlce&\hm

focus lastyear helped drive a 23%{crease in ehecklng accoﬁ'—

deposits (which is the largest component of core deposﬁs),
over a year earlier. We also effectively use all of our sales
channels: our online bank has enrolled 400,000 users in two
years, 30% of whom hold checking accounts. Our grocery
store branches are the best performing in the industry, while
ongoing deposit and lending sales efforts continue to deliver
tremendous results at all of our 461 banking centers. Finally,
we have an industry-leading cross-sell track record. Last year,
60% of all new mortgages came attached with home equity
lines, and 38% of all new mortgages came attached with

high-balance core accounts.




T TOBEAMWBHY -




bW yeU Shoule:

OV e




ﬂ 7




i

idential lending is an end in
etency

.
fiom migigieEleleE
cgliasg ortgage orig

\*ve dof

* & e ¢ o ®
AR

.....



T0 BE A TOP RETAIL
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being the 1th lergest retall residential originator

ereates terrific cross-selling opportunities
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.o To be an important part of the community, you must be an

integral part. Our charitable giving program — in which we
support gver 338 organizations company-wide — is substantial,
wide-ranging and is comprised of both financial and time
commitments to help improve the effectiveness of the
organizations we support. Of particular importance is our
commitment to reducing the barriers to realizing the American
dream of home ownership for low- to moderate-income
individuals. We offer a combination of financial support,
planning assistance, technical expertise and community
development investments, as well as a vast range of loan
products and services. Additionally, we work with leading
community development groups to effectively direct our
investments and community efforts. Our corporate-wide
inclusion initiatives last year yielded impressive results: we
developed very strong business partnerships with various
minority- and women-owned businesses, increasing both the
number and dollars spent with these groups; and we have
hired more employees who reflect the increasingly diverse

communities we serve.
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form 10-K AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
selected FINANCIAL DATA

The selected financial data presented below should be read in con- things, the effect of acquisitions. For a discussion of the impact of
junction with Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial recent business combinations and branch acquisitions, see Notes
Condition and Results of Operations, as well as the audited 3 and 19 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Per
Consolidated Financial Statements contained elsewhere in this share data has been restated to reflect all stock dividends and
Annual Report. The selected financial data presented below is not stock splits as of December 31, 2002.

necessarily indicative of future results due to, among other

At and for the Year Ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Financial condition:

Cash, federal funds sold and other § 447213 $ 516,520 § 531,257 $ 693532 § 722260
Investment securities 214,068 135,586 449,215 542,081 629,072
Mortgage-backed securities 12,077,389 9014418 5,593,371 6,100,380 5,570,286
Loans and leases, net 26,204,738 25,728,700 24,008,174 22,312,850 22,213.411
Other assets 2,952,664 2,779,294 2,389,410 2,170,220 1,339,178
Tota! assets $41,896,072 $38,174,516 $32,971,427 $31,819,063 $30,480,207
Deposits $27,527,843 $25,123,309 $19,605,671 $19,073,975 $19,023,700
FHLB advances 9,037,925 8,657,238 9,636,277 9,226,150 7512203
Other borrawings 992,765 507,669 547,134 515,574 1,009,954
Other liabilities 1,253,714 957,800 726,141 605,664 549,314
Shareholders’ equity 3,083,825 2,828,500 2,455,204 2,397,700 2,385,035
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $41,896,072 $38,174,516 $32,971,427 $31,819,063 $30.,480,207
Results of operations:

Interest income § 2,286,461 $ 2,378,246 $ 2,247 088 § 2,128,455 $ 2130332
Interest expense 1,116,631 1,387,830 1,344,053 1,194,351 1,244,108
Net interest income 1,169,830 990,416 903,035 934,104 886,224
Provision for loan and lease losses 192,003 100,765 54,205 35,237 31,325
Net interest income after provision for loan and lease losses 977 827 839,650 848,830 898,867 854,899
Other income 547,546 473,624 392,871 228,206 177,736
Administrative expenses 678,972 629,662 603,955 633,327 665,340
Income before income taxes 846,401 733,612 637,746 493,748 367,295
Income taxes 268,733 232,898 203,784 159,770 123,229
Net income § 577,668 § 500,714 § 433962 § 333978 $ 244,065
Basic earnings per share $ 252 $ 2.15 $ 1.84 $ 1.35 $ 93

Diluted earnings per share $ 2.45 $ 2.16 $ 1.81 § 1.32 $ 96
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At and for the Year Ended December 31,

{Doltars in thousands, except per share data) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Performance returns:
Return on average assets 1.47% 1.41% 1.36% 1.08% 82%
Return on average equity 19.38 18.17 18.00 13.50 10.26
Efficiency ratio ) 39.54 41.91 45,68 50.69 57.79
Other data:
Loan servicing portfolio $16,893,609 $13,846,807 $10,379,644 $10,798,563 $9,916,922
Book value per share 13.72 1243 10.70 9.90 9.62
Tangible book value per share 11.86 10.92 9.94 9.1 897
Dividend payout ratio 33.88% 3381% 33.15% 38.64% 45,83%
Net yield on average interest-earning assets 319 3.00 302 318 3N
Average shareholders’ equity to average assets 759 7.76 7.58 7.99 7.96
Total shareholders” equity to total assets 7.38 767 7.45 7.54 7.82
Total tangible shareholders’ equity to total assets 6.36 6.74 6.92 6.93 7.29
Number of offices:

Full service branches 461 456 419 417 405

Loan production offices 26 29 32 36 41
Number of employees {FTEs) 6,937 6,850 6,573 7,055 7.104
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financial REVIEW

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following financial review presents an analysis of the asset
and liability structure of Charter One Financial, Inc. and a discus-
sion of the results of operations for each of the periods presented
in the Annual Report. The data presented in the following pages
should be read in conjunction with the audited Consolidated
Financial Statements contained elsewhere in this Annual Report.

HOLDING COMPANY BUSINESS

Headquartered in Cleveland, Ohio, Charter One Financial, Inc.,
hereafter referred to as “Charter One” or the “Company,” is a finan-
cial holding company. Charter One is a Delaware corporation and
owns all of the outstanding capital stock of Charter One Bank,
N.A., which we sometimas refer to in this document as the “Bank.”
The Bank’s primary business is providing consumer banking serv-
ices to certain major markets in Ohio, Michigan, Illinois, New
York, Vermont and in some markets of Massachusetts. At the end
of 2002, the Bank and its subsidiaries were doing business
through 461 full-service branches, 26 loan production offices and
913 ATMs.

On January 7, 2002, Charter One Bank, F.S.B. filed an
application with the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency
(*OCC”) to convert from a thrift to a national bank. The conversion
was effective May 7, 2002 and resulted in changing the Bank’s
name to Charter One Bank, N.A. from Charter One Bank, F.S.B.
References to Charter Cne Bank or the Bank shall mean Charter
One Bank, N.A. or Charter One Bank, F.S.B. as the context requires.

RECENT ACQUISITIONS

On May 24, 2002, the Company completed its acquisition of
Charter National Bancorp, Inc., the holding company of Charter
Bank in Wyandotte, Michigan. On May 24, 2002, Charter National
had assets of $353.2 million and deposits of $242.3 million in eight
branches located south of Detroit, Michigan. The Company paid
$g90.4 million in cash consideration and recorded $34.8 million of
goodwill based on a preliminary determination of the estimated
fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired as a result of this
transaction. Additionally, the Company recorded $25.0 million as an
indefinite-lived trademark name intangible. The Company account-
ed for this acquisition as a purchase, and included the results of
operations of Charter National in its Consolidated Financial
Statements from the effective date of the acquisition. The merger of
Charter Bank into the Bank was effective August 9, 2002.

On January 16, 2003, the Boards of Directors of the
Company and Advance Bancorp, Inc. announced a definitive
agreement pursuant to which the Company will acquire Advance
Bancorp for $72 million in Charter One common stock. Advance
Bank, the principal subsidiary of Advance Bancorp, is a state-char-
tered commercial bank headquartered in Lansing, Illinois with
approximately $632 million in assets, $491 million in deposits,
and 14 branch offices located in Cook County, Illinois. The merger,
which will be accounted for as a purchase, is expected to close in
the second or third quarter of 2003. The transaction is subject to
required bank regulatory approvals and approval by Advance
Bancorp shareholders.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

For the year ended December 31, 2002, Charter One reported net
income of $577.7 million, compared to $500.7 million and $434.0
million for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respec-
tively. On a diluted per share basis, net income was $2.45, $2.10
and $1.81 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.




NET INTEREST INCOME

Net interest income is the difference between the interest and
dividend income earned on our loans and investments and the
interest expense on our deposits and borrowings. Net interest
income is our principal source of earnings. Net interest income is
affected by a number of factors including the level, pricing and
maturity of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabili-
ties, interest rate fluctuations and asset quality, as well as general

economic conditions and regulatory policies.
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The following table shows average balances, interest earned or
paid, and average interest rates for the periods indicated.
Nonaccrual loans and leases are included in the average balance
of loans and leases. The mark-to-market adjustments on securi-
ties available for sale are included in noninterest-earning assets.
Noninterest-bearing demand deposit accounts are included in
noninterest-bearing liabilities. The cost of liabilities includes the
annualized effect of interest rate risk management instruments.

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Avg. Avg. Avg.
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/
{Doliars in thousands} Balance Interest Cost Balance Interest Cost Balance interest Cost
Interest-earning assets:
Loans and leases $25,647 597 $1,671,843 6.52% $25,463,666 $1,.872,270 7.35% $23,830.266 $1,810,608 7.60%
Mortgage-backed securities:
Available for sale 9,194,477 519,821 565 5574832 366,475 .57 3342744 241,369 722
Held to maturity 725,164 47,747 6.58 1,243,975 86,952 6.99 1,680,002 120,812 715
Investment securities:
Trading - - - - - - 183 38 2067
Available for sale 172,674 11,495 6.66 138.811 11,180 8.05 458,299 33412 7.29
Held to maturity 4,824 252 5.23 7,853 409 5.21 29,008 1,594 5.49
Other interest-earning assets 894,898 35,303 3.89 28,560 40,860 6.43 543,450 39,255 7.10
Total interest-earning assets 36,639,634 2,286,461 8.24 33,057,637 2,378,246 718 29,893,952 2,247,088 751
Allowance for loan and lease losses - (268,654} {211,859) (185,623}
Noninterest-earning assets 2,877,215 2,651,957 2,097,930
Total assets $39,248,195 $35,497,795 $31,806,319
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits:
Checking accounts $ 6,278,844 133,393 212% $ 3,867,767 118,800 3.07% $ 2,394,554 57,229 2.3%%
Money market and savings accounts 8,084,926 173,931 215 6,433,557 207,586 3.23 5,401,048 168,379 3.12
Certificates of deposit 10,054,727 347,492 3.46 10,230,112 528,897 5.17 38,821,168 540,501 5.50
Total deposits 24,418,437 654,816 2.68 20,531,436 855,283 417 17,616,770 766,109 4.35
FHLB advances 8,233,376 416,864 5.08 9,361,225 498,444 5.32 9,309,296 532,583 5.71
(Other horrowings 732,486 44,951 6.12 515,345 34,103 6.58 613,875 45,361 732
Total borrowings 8,965,842 461,815 5.15 9,876,570 532,547 5.39 9923171 577,944 5.81
Total interest-bearing liabilities 33,384,339 1,116,631 334 30,408,006 1,387,830 458 27,533,941 1,344,053 488
Noninterest-bearing liabilities:
Demand deposit accounts 1,816,036 1,477,294 1,238,086
Other noninterest-bearing liabilities 1,066,934 856,906 616,804
Total noninterest-bearing liabilities 2,882,970 2,334,200 1,854,830
Total liabilities 36,267,309 32,742,206 29,394,831
Shareholders’ equity 2,980,886 2,755,589 2,411,488
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity  $39,248,195 $35,497,795 $31.808,319
Net interest income $1,169,830 $ 990,416 $ 903.035
Interest rate spread 2.90% 2.63% 2.63%
Net yield on average interest-earning assets 3.19% 3.00% 3.02%
Average interest-garning assets to average
interest-bearing liabilities 109.75% 108.71% 108.55%
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The following rate/volume analysis shows the approximate
relative contribution of changes in average interest rates and
volume to changes in net interest income for the periods
indicated. Changes not solely attributable to volume or rate have
been allocated in proportion to the changes due to volume and

RATE/VOLUME ANALYSIS

Year Ended December 31, 2002 v. 2001

rate. Amortization of net deferred loan costs and automobile
dealer reserves included as a reduction in interest income was
$101.2 million, $81.0 million, and $55.1 million in 2002, 2001 and

2000, respectively.

Year Ended December 31, 2001 v. 2000

Increase (Decrease) due to

Increase (Decrease) due to

{Dollars in thousands) Rate Volume Total Rate Valume Total
Interest income:
Loans and leases $(214,351) $ 13,924 $(200,427) $(64,103) $125,765 $ 61,662
Mortgage-backed securities:
Availabie for sale (57,201) 210,547 153,348 {23,334) 148,440 125,106
Held to maturity (4,788) (34.417) 139,205} (2,828) (31,232 (33,860)
Investment securities:
Trading - ~ - (19) (19) (38}
Available for sale (2,136) 2451 315 3,181 {25,413) (22,232}
Held to maturity - (157) (157) (79 {1,108} {1,185}
Other interest-earning assets {19,457) 13,810 (5,657) (4,066) 5771 1,705
Total {297,943 206,158 (91,785 {91,048 222,206 131,158
Interest expense:
Checking accounts {44,187} 58,780 14,593 28,672 32,899 61,571
Money market and savings accounts (86,949) 53,294 133,855) (7.822) 47029 39,207
Certificates of depasit (172,486) (8,919) {181,405) (33,554} 21,850 (11,604)
FHLB advances {22,515) {59,065) (81,580) (37,439) 3,300 {34,139)
Other borrawings (7.933) 18,781 10,848 {7.085} (4,173} {11,258}
Total (334,070) 62,871 (271,199) {57,228) 101,005 43,777
Change in net interest income § 36,127 $143,287 $179,414 $(33,820) $121,20 $ 87,381

Our net interest income for the year ended December 31, 2002
was $1.2 billion, an increase of $179.4 million, or 18.1%, over the
$990.4 million for 2001. The increase in net interest income was
primarily attributed to the reduction in the cost of interest-bearing
liabilities from 4.56% in 2001 t0 3.34% in 2002. The reduction in
the cost of average interest-bearing liabilities resulted primarily
from the repricing of higher interest rate certificates of deposits
during 2002, together with the downward repricing and increase
in volume of certain core deposits.

Our net interest income for the year ended December 31,
2001 was Sggo.4 million, an increase of $87.4 million, or g.7%,
over the §go3.0 million for 2000. The yield on interest-earning
assets declined to 7.19% in 2001 from 7.51% in 2000. However,
interest-earning assets increased $3.2 billion in 2001 due to
acquisitions and internal growth. The increase in interest-earning
assets more than offset the downward pricing of assets in this
lower interest rate environment. The increase in net interest
income was also attributed to the reduction in the cost of

interest-bearing liabilities from 4.88% in 2000 t0 4.56% in 2001.

PROVISION FOR LOAN AND LEASE LOSSES

The provision for loan and lease losses in 2002 was $192.0 million,
an increase of $91.2 million from 2001. The increased provision
during 2002 was necessary to cover higher charge-offs and
maintain the allowance for loan and lease losses at a level consid-
ered adequate to absorb losses inherent in the loan and lease
portfolio. Additionally, the provision for loan and lease losses was
increased to reflect the continued weakening in the national
economy during 2002 and continuing change in our loan mix. Net
charge-offs totaled $122.6 million in 2002, compared to $68.7
million in 2001. The $122.6 million of net charge-offs for 2002
includes $27.3 million in gross charge-offs recorded in the second
quarter in conjunction with Charter One’s adoption of a new
consumer loan charge-off policy. As part of the Bank’s conversion
in May 2002 to a national bank, the Company conformed various
policies and reporting practices associated with asset quality to
more closely compare to those of its commercial bank peers. These
changes neither increased nor decreased ultimate net loan and
lease charge-offs. They only affected the timing of recognizing net




consumer asset charge-offs through the allowance for loan and
lease losses and the disclosure of underperforming consumer
assets. Consumer assets include single-family, retail consumer,
automobile and consumer finance loan portfolios. These changes
had nc impact on Charter One’s non-consumer loan portfolios,
which include commercial real estate and corporate loans and its
lease portfolio.

The most significant effect of the change in charge-off
policy was in the automobile and consumer finance portfolios.
Prior to the second quarter of 2002, automobile loans were
charged off at the point of repossessed collateral disposition.
Beginning with the second quarter of 2002, consistent with
OCC-regulated banking practices, automobile loans going
through repossession or bankruptcies were written down to the
net realizable value of the collateral at the time of the reposses-
sion or bankruptcy discharge. Any automobile loan that reached
the 120-day delinquency point was charged off completely.
Charge-offs in the consumer finance portfolio were previously
recognized at the point of foreclosure. Beginning with the second
quarter of 2002, consistent with OCC-regulated banking practices,
consumer finance loans, along with other loans backed by
single-family residential real estate collateral, were reflected at
the lower of cost or net realizable value at the earliest point of six
payments past due or foreclosure.

The ratio of net charge-offs as a percent of average loans
and leases increased 21 basis points to .48% in 2002 from .27% in
2001. Excluding the impact of the change in charge-off policy
discussed above, net charge-offs as a percent of average loans and
leases were .37% in 2002, as compared to .27% in 2001. The
increase in net charge-offs, excluding the impact of the change in
charge-off policy, was primarily attributed to a continued weaken-
ing in the national economy during 2002 and the continuing
change in our loan mix.

The provision for loan and lease losses in 2001 was
$100.8 million, an increase of $46.6 million from 2000. The
increased provision during 2001 was necessary to cover higher
charge-offs and maintain the allowance for loan and leases losses
at a level considered adequate to absorb losses inherent in the loan
and lease portfo]i\o. Net charge-offs totaled $68.7 millicn in 2003,
compared to $51.0 million in 2000. The ratio of net charge-offs as a
percent of average loans and leases increased six basis points to
.27% in 2001 from .21% in 2000. The increase in net charge-offs was
primarily attributed to a general weakening in the national
economy. Additionally, the provision for loan and lease losses was
increased to reflect the continuing change in our loan mix.

See “Financial Condition - Loans and Leases” below and
Note 6 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further
information regarding our allowance for loan and lease losses.
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OTHER INCOME
Other income for 2002 was $547.5 million, compared to $473.6
million for 2001. This $73.9 million, or 15.6%, increase was prima-
rily attributable to income from retail banking and net gains,
partially offset by a decline in mortgage banking income. Retail
banking income increased $38.8 million, or 13.3%, over 2001. The
growth was attributed to successful integration of our recent
mergers and branch acquisitions, together with ongoing franchise
development initiatives. Additionally, we experienced increases in
transaction-related revenues. Net gains were $205.0 million in
2002, compared to $114.3 million in 2001. The mortgage-backed
securities sold during the year consisted primarily of bank-origi-
nated, residential mortgage and consumer products, as we gener-
ated significantly more residential mortgage and consumer loans
than we needed to meet our balance sheet size and mix objectives.
We did not utilize any special-purpose entities for the sale of any
of our mortgage-backed securities. Offsetting the gains on sales of
mortgage-backed securities of $259.0 million was a $28.8 million
loss on debt termination and a $25.9 million net unrealized loss on
interest rate swaps that do not qualify for hedge accounting under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,”
as amended. The $25.9 million net unrealized loss on interest rate
swaps was the result of the decline in interest rates since the
issuance of the interest rate swaps in May 2002.

Mortgage banking income was a loss of $18.5 million in
2002, as compared to income of $24.9 million in 2001. With
respect to the decline in mortgage banking income, we recorded
an impairment charge of $4.5 million and increased the valuation
allowance on loan servicing assets by $77.1 million in 2002 to an
ending balance of $103.9 million, due to increased prepayment
speeds resulting from higher levels of refinancing. Total mortgage
banking income, excluding the S4.5 million impairment charge
and $77.1 million increase to the valuation allowance, was $63.1
million in 2002. In 2001, mortgage banking income totaled $49.5
million, excluding a $24.6 million increase in the valuation
allowance. Excluding the impairment charge and increases to the
valuation allowance in 2002 and 2001, mortgage banking income
increased 27.4% year over year. As a result of continued strong
loan origination and securitization activity in 2002, the portfolio
of loans serviced for others increased to $16.9 billion, up 22.0%
from 2001. The related loan servicing asset was .76% of the portfo-
lio at $128.6 million. With an average servicing spread of 35 basis
peints, that translates into a loan servicing asset valuation of 2.17
times the servicing spread.
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Other income for 2001 was $473.6 million, compared to $392.9
million for 2000. This $80.8 million, or 20.6%, increase was
primarily attributable to income from retail banking and net
gains on sales. Retail banking income increased $48.3 million, or
19.9%, over 2000. The growth was attributed to successful integra-
tion of our acquisitions together with ongoing franchise develop-
ment initiatives. Net gains on sales were $114.3 million in 2001,
compared to $9.3 million in 2000. The mortgage-backed securities
sold during the year consisted primarily of bank-originated,
fixed-rate residential mortgage and consumer products, as we
generated significantly more residential mortgage and consumer
loans than we needed to meet our balance sheet size and mix
objectives. We did not utilize any special-purpose entities for the
sale of any of our mortgage-backed securities. The increases in
retail banking and net gains on sales were partially offset by a
$53.0 million, or 68.1%, decrease in mortgage banking income.
This decline in mortgage banking income resulted primarily from
an increase of $24.6 million to the valuation allowance on loan
servicing assets in response to faster prepayment speeds result-

ing from higher levels of refinancing.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses were $679.0 million for 2002, an
increase of $49.3 million from 2001. The increase in administra-
tive expenses was primarily attributable to costs associated with
the operational integration of acquisitions completed in the last
year and continued investments in our operations. Additionally,
marketing expenses increased by $8.8 million as we implemented
various programs geared to support sales efforts throughout the
Bank. The increase in administrative expenses in 2002 was
partially offset by the $S16.2 million decline in amortization of
goodwill over 2001, as a result of the Company’s adoption of SFAS
No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” and SFAS No. 147,
“Acquisitions of Certain Financial Institutions, an amendment of

FASB Statements No. 72 and 144 and FASB Interpretation No. g.”

Despite the increase in administrative expenses, our efficiency
ratio improved to 39.54% for 2002 from 41.91% in 2001, and our
ratio of administrative expenses to average assets improved to
1.73% in 2002 from 1.77% in 2001.

Administrative expenses were $629.7 million for 2001,
an increase of $25.7 million from 2000. There were $29.5 million
in merger-related expenses recorded in 2000 related to our acqui-
sition of St. Paul Bancorp, Inc. The increase in administrative
expenses year over year was primarily attributable to costs associ-
ated with the operational integration of acquisitions and $12.2
million in higher marketing costs as we implemented various
programs geared to support sales efforts throughout the Bank.
Additionally, during the fourth quarter of 2001, Charter One
contributed $7.5 million to a newly formed charitable foundation.
Despite the increase in administrative expenses, our efficiency
ratio improved to 41.91% for 2001 from 45.68% in 2000, and our
ratio of administrative expenses to average assets improved to

1.77% in 2001 from 1.90% in 2000.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The provision for income taxes was $268.7 million, $232.9 million
and $203.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001,
and 2000, respectively. The effective tax rates were 31.8%, 31.7%,
and 32.0% for the vears ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000,
respectively. For a further analysis of our income taxes, see

Note 13 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

At December 31, 2002, total assets were $41.g billion, an increase
of $3.7 billion, or 9.7%, from $38.2 billion at December 31, 2001.
Contributing to the increase in total assets was a $3.5 billion
increase in our mortgage-backed securities available for sale
portfolio, as well as growth in our loans and leases. See “Loans and
Leases” below for further discussion regarding our loan and
lease activity.




LOANS AND LEASES

Total loans and leases at December 31, 2002 were $26.2 billion,
compared to $25.7 billion at December 31, 2001. The increase of
S.5 billion was primarily attributable to the Charter National
merger in which we acquired $203.0 million of loans. Additionally,
as illustrated in the table below, we originated $21.2 billion of
loans and leases during 2002, compared to $17.8 billion of loan
and lease originations in 2001. Offsetting the originations in 2002
were $6.7 billion of residential mortgage and consumer loan
securitizations, as we generated significantly more residential
mortgage and consumer loans than we needed to meet our balance
sheet size and mix objectives. These residential mortgage and
consumer loans were exchanged for government agency
mortgage-backed securities. We did not retain any credit enhanc-

ing residual interests, nor are we subject to any significant

LOAN AND LEASE ACTIVITY

| Year Ended December 31,
{Dollars in thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Originations:
Real estate mortgage:
Permanent:
One-to-four family $10,554,142 | $ 8,814,430 § 4,916,631
Muttifamily 157,166 42,453 34,454
Commercial 237,710 155,604 199,648
Total permanent loans 10,343,018 | 9012487  5150,733
Construction:
One-to-four family 35,716 343,510 605,240
Multifamily 73,348 138,861 78,542
Commercial 164,577 195,896 104,045
Total construction loans 279,639 684,267 787,827
Total real estate mortgage
loans originated 11,228,657 | 9696754 5938560
Retail consumer 4,091,298 | 3536687 2,063,352
Automobile 3395273 2715921 1,791,772
Consumer finance 285,920 259,458 405,193
Leases 521,096 502,073 794,947
Corporate banking 1,717,328 1,138,496 818,394
Total loans and
leases originated 21,239,572 | 17,849,389 11812218
Acquired through business combinations
and purchases 218,308 | 1,425,549 18,809
Sales and principal reductions:
Loans sold 273945241 1,635,903 472,622
Loans exchanged for mortgage-
backed securities 6,667,082 6,708,253 3,991,087
Principal reductions 11,817,711 9.111,479 5,593,663
Total sales and principal reductions 20,879,317} 17,455,835 10,057,372
Increase before net items $ 578563 $ 1819303 § 1,773,655

THE CHARTER ONE FINANCIAL, INC. ANNUAL REPORT |

recourse obligations. At the time of such exchange, we did not
recognize a gain or loss in our Consolidated Statements of Income.
Rather, the government agency mortgage-backed securities were
classified as available for sale on the Consolidated Statements of
Financial Condition and carried at estimated fair value with the
unrealized holding gain or loss reflected as a component of share-
holders' equity. Net gains are realized in the Consolidated
Statements of Income at the time of sale of these government
agency mortgage-backed securities.

Our lending operations are primarily concentrated in
Ohio, Michigan, New York, Illinois, Vermont and Massachusetts.
As a result, our financial condition and results of operations will
be subject to general economic conditions prevailing in those
states. If economic conditions in those states worsen, we may
experience higher default rates in our existing portfolic as well as
a reduction in the value of collateral securing individual loans.
Separately, our ability to originate the volume of loans or achieve
the level of deposits currently anticipated could be affected.

The following table sets forth certain information
concerning nonperforming and underperforming assets for the
periods reported. Underperforming assets consist of (1) nonperform-
ing assets (nonaccrual loans and leases, restructured real estate
mortgage loans, and real estate acquired through foreclosure and
other collateral owned) and (2) accruing loans and leases delin-
quent more than go days. See Note 1 to the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for further discussion regarding our

nonperforming and underperforming assets,
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NONPERFORMING AND UNDERPERFORMING ASSETS

December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2002 200 2000 1999 1998
Nonperforming assets{1):
Nonaccrual loans and leases:
Real estate martgage loans:
One-to-four family(2) $ 27,904 $ 79,394 $ 71,269 § 75,682 § 79,768
Multifamily and commercial 5,363 13,552 8,132 3,369 7,002
Construction and land 9,885 10,276 8,806 1,095 1,178
Total real estate mortgage loans 43,158 103,222 88,207 80,146 87,948
Retail consumer(2) 13,937 16,592 11,120 16,607 14,888
Automobile(3) - - 130 482 454
Consumer finance(2) 40,227 68,485 48673 23,031 7752
Leases 6.211 904 - - -
Corparate banking 39,098 10,551 18,707 6,037 9,559
Total nonaccrual loans and leases 142,631 199,754 166,837 126,303 120,601
Less government guarantead loans(1) - 19,630 19,225 18,841 22,429
Total nonaccrual foans net of government
guaranteed loans 142,631 180,124 147,612 107,482 98,172
Restructured real estate mortgage loans 501 653 666 1,008 4,193
Total nonperforming foans and leases 143,132 180,777 148,278 108,471 102,365
Reat estate and other collateral owned(3} 40,776 50,265 27.523 24,453 19,900
Total nonperforming assets $183,908 $231,042 $175,801 $132,924 $122,265
Ratio of (excluding government quaranteed loans):
Nonperforming loans and leases to total loans and leases 55% 70% 82% A43% 46%
Nonperforming assets to total assets 44 61 .53 42 40
Nonperforming assets to total loans, leases and real
estate and other collateral owned 70 80 73 60 55
Allowance for loan and lease losses to:
Nonperforming loans and leases 22817 141.32 127.88 171.84 180.72
Total loans and leases before allowance 1.24 93 78 83 83
Accruing loans and leases definquent more than 90 days(1):
Real estate mortgage loans:
One-to-four family(2) $ 25,643 3 - $ - $ - $ 5690
Multifamily and commercial - - - - -
Construction and land - - - - -
Total real estate mortgage loans 25,643 - - - 5,890
Retail consumer(2) 4,758 4,519 2586 2,562 3,878
Automobile(3) 3621 6,000 8911 4973 5,873
Cansumer finance(2) 26,739 - - - -
Leases 19 - 2956 - -
Corporate banking 1,536 4,691 2,086 2463 804
Total accruing loans and leases definquent more than 90 days 62,316 15210 14,539 9,998 16,345
Less government guaranteed loans{1} - 1,876 - - -
Total accruing loans and leases delinguent more
than 90 days net of government guaranteed loans $ 62,316 $ 13334 $ 14539 $ 94998 $ 16,345
Total underperforming assets $246,224 $244,376 $190,340 $142922 $138,610
Ratio of (excluding gavermnment guaranteed loans):
Underperforming assets to tote! assets 58% 64% 58% 45% 45%
Underperforming assets to tote! loans, leases and
real estate and other collateral owned 94 95 79 B4 82

(1} Effective June 30, 2002, amounts exclude loans guaranteed by the Federal Housing Administration or Veterans” Administration. Prior periods have not been restated.

{2} Effective June 30, 2002, Charter Gne adopted a new accrual policy in which consumer loans secured by residential real estate are placed on nonaccruaf at six payments past due as long 2s the loan is well secured and in the process of
collection, This new policy was implemented prospectively and as such, prior periods have not been restated. The change in the accrual policy did not have a materiaf impact on interest income. Management believes the changes to this

policy conform Charter One’s acerual mathodology to that of its commercial banking peers.

(3) Effective for the period ended June 30, 2002, Charter One adopted a new loan charge—off policy in which automobile loans are charged off based upon repossession and in certain cases, at the point of bankruptcy discharge. Any autome-
bile loans reaching 120 days delinquent are charged off completely. Previously, Charter Gne’s policy was to record charge-offs of loans secured by automabiles at the point of repossessed collateral disposition. This new policy was imple-
mented prospectively and as such, prior periods have not been restated. Management believes the chianges to this policy conforms Charter One's charge-off methodolagy to that of its commercial banking peers.




Loans and leases not reflected in the table above, but where known
information about possible credit problems of borrowers causes
management to have serious doubts as to the ability of the borrower
to comply with present repayment terms and that may result in
disclosure of such loans and leases as underperforming assets in the
future are commonly referred to as “potential problem loans.” During
the second quarter of 2002, we changed how we determine potential
problem loans t¢ be consistent with commercial banking practice.
Previously that determination included all loans and leases classi-
fied as “substandard” not already included as underperforming,
without a loan-by-loan evaluation, even though historically only a
very small percentage of those loans and leases was ultimately
reflected in future charge-offs. Under the newly adopted method, the
amount included in potential problem loans results from an evalua-
tion, on a loan-by-loan basis, of loans classified as “substandard.” The
amount of potential problem loans was $14.8 million at December 31,
2002. The vast majority of these loans and leases, as well as our
underperforming assets, are collateralized.

Although loans may be classified as nonaccruing, many
continue to pay interest on an irregular basis or at levels less than
the contractual amounts due. Income recorded on nonaccruing and
restructured loans amounted to $4.3 million and the potential
income based upon full contractual yields was $12.9 million for the
year ended December 31, 2002.

The Company maintains an allowance for loan and lease
losses adequate to absorb estimated probable losses inherent in the
loan and lease portfolio. The allowance for loan and lease losses
consists of specific reserves for individual credits and general
reserves for types or portfolios of loans based on historical loan loss
experience, adjusted for concentrations and the current economic
environment. All outstanding loans and leases are considered in
evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for loan and lease losses.
Increases to the allowance for loan and lease losses are made by
charges to the provision for loan and lease losses. Loans deemed to
be uncollectible are charged against the allowance for loan and
lease losses. Recoveries of previously charged-off amounts are

credited to the allowance for loan and leases losses.
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The following table details certain information relating to the
allowance for loan and lease losses for the five years ended

December 31, 2002.

ANALYSIS OF ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN AND LEASE LOSSES
Year Ended December 31,
{Dallars in thousands) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

$255,478 $183,616 $186,400 $184,983 §181554

Balance, beginning of year
Provision for loan and

lease losses 192,003 100,766 54,205 35,237 31,325
Acquired through business
combination 3,184 33,782 - 3,603 -
Charge-offs:
Mortgage (7.154)  {4,335) 6,064}  (8,040)  (7,052)
Retail consumer {13,100)  (7613) {12,508} {3,952)  (3,823)
Automabile (78,965)  (40,097) {27,827} (28.012) (25670)
Consumer finance {26,395)  (11,246) (4,894) {1,340 {71)
Leases (2,868)  (7.486) - (900} -
Corporate banking (16,612) (7,672) {8,938} (3,240) (1,440
Total charge-offs(1) (145,094) (78459)  (60.331) (45484} (38.056)
Recoveries:
Mortgage 1,616 207 1,398 868 3,767
Retail consumer 1,834 1,972 1,610 789 1,051
Automobile 12,687 6,603 5810 6,172 4953
Consumer finance 524 227 17 19 -
Leases 2,327 220 - - -
Corporate banking 3,458 544 509 207 335
Total recoveries 22,446 9,773 9,342 8,055 10,166
Net loan and lease
charge-offs{1) (122,648) {68,686) {(50989) {37,429) {27.890)

Balance, end of year $328,017 $255478 $189616 §186,400 $184,989

Net charge-offs to
average loans and leases(1) 48% 27% 21% 7% 13%

{1} Includes $27.3 million in charge-offs recorded in the second quarter of 2002 in conjunction with Charter One's
adoption of the new consumer loan charge-off policy discussed above. This new poficy was implemented prospec-
tively and as such, prior periods have not baen restated. Excluding the impact of the change in charge-off policy, net
charge-offs as a percent of average loans and leases were .37% in 2002.
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In determining the adequacy of the allowance for loan and lease
losses, management reviews and evaluates on a quarterly basis the
potential credit risk in the loan and lease portfolio. This evaluation
process is documented by senior management and approved by the
Company’s Board of Directors. Management evaluates homogeneous
consumer-oriented loans, such as 1-4 family mortgage loans and retail
consumer loans, based upon all or a combination of delinquencies,
credit scores, loss migration analysis and charge-off experience.
Management supplements this analysis by reviewing the geographi-
cal lending areas involved and their local economic and political
trends, the nature and volume of the portfolio, regulatory examina-
tion findings, specific grading systems applied and any other known
factors which may impact future credit losses. Nonhomogeneous
loans, generally defined as commercial real estate loans, corporate
banking loans and leases, are underwritten, approved and risk rated
individually at inception. On a monthly basis, management re-evalu-
ates the risk ratings on these nonhomogeneous loans if loan relation-
ships exceed certain dollar thresholds established for the respective
portfolios. The Company’s risk rating methodology uses nine grade
levels to stratify each portfolio. Many factors are considered when
these grades are assigned to individual loans and leases such as
current and past delinquency, financial statements of the borrower,
current net realizable value of collateral, the general economic
environment and the specific economic trends affecting the individ-
ual loan or lease. During this evaluation process, individual loans are
identified and evaluated for impairment as prescribed under SFAS
No. 114, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan.”
Impairment losses are recognized when, based upon current informa-
tion, it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect all
amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agree-
ment. Impairment is measured either by a loan’s observable market
value, fair value of the collateral or the present value of future cash
flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate. These impair-
ment losses, combined with other probable losses as determined in
the loan and lease portfolio evaluation process, are charged to the
allowance for loan and lease losses. This data is then presented to the
Company’s Reserve Adequacy Committee, comprised of senior
members of management and independent directors. The Reserve
Adequacy Committee determines the level of allowance for loan and
lease losses necessary to maintain the allowance for loan and lease
losses at an amount considered adequate to absorb probable loan and
lease losses inherent in the portfolio. Although management believes
that it uses the best information available to determine the adequacy
of the allowance for loan and lease losses, future adjustments to the
allowance may be necessary and results of operations could be signif-

icantly and adversely affected if circumstances differ substantially
from the assumptions used in making the determinations. See Notes1
and 6 to the Notes to Consoclidated Financial Statements for
additional information concerning the Company’s allowance for loan
and lease losses.

The following table sets forth the allocation of the
allowance for loan and lease losses to the respective loan and lease
classifications, in dollar and percentage terms. The allocation of the
allowance for loan and lease losses is based on a consideration of all
of the factors discussed above that are used to determine the
allowance for loans and leases as a whole. Since all of those factors
are subject to change, the allocation of the allowance for loan and
leases losses shown below is not necessarily indicative of future
tosses or future allocations. Management believes that the
allowance for loan and lease losses at December 31, 2002 was
adequate to absorb losses occurring in any category of loans
and leases.

ALLOCATION OF ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN AND LEASE LOSSES

December 31,

{Dallars in thousands) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Mortgage $ 90510 $ 73311 $103,989 $107,576 $110,635
Retail cansumer 68,346 30,366 15191 17,323 16,869
Automobile 54,776 65,6086 42,206 38,301 39,585
Consumer finance 18,561 33,433 7,855 5,356 1,654
Leases 22,787 21,587 5,237 4,037 3737
Corporate banking 53,037 31,175 15,138 13,807 12,509
Total $328,017  $255478  $189,616 $186400 $184,989
Percent of net loans and leases to total net loans and leases:
Mortgage 41.6% 48.9% 53.1% 60.8% 70.1%
Retail consumer 20.7 18.8 19.2 168 129
Automaobile 211 16.8 1289 1.0 92
Consumer finance 37 39 41 32 2.0
Leases 8.1 77 74 5.1 33
Carporate banking 48 39 33 3.0 25
Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%  100.0%  100.0%




INVESTMENTS AND MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES

The securities portfolio is comprised primarily of mortgage-backed
securities, including government agency and AAA and AA rated
private issues. We held no investments or mortgage-backed
securities of any single non-governmental issuer which were in
excess of 10% of shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2002. See
Naotes 4 and 5 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional discussion regarding our investments and mortgage-
backed securities.

DEPOSITS, BORROWINGS AND OTHER SOURCES OF FUNDS
Deposits are generally the most important source of our funds for
use in lending and for general business purposes. Deposit inflows
and outflows are significantly influenced by general interest rates
and competitive factors. Consumer and commercial deposits are
attracted principally within our primary market areas. Deposits
totaled $27.5 billion and $25.1 billion at December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. This represented an increase of 9.6% year over year.
Core deposits (checking accounts and money market and savings
accounts) increased $3.2 billion, or 22.2%, since December 31, 2001
See Note 8 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
further discussion regarding our deposits.

In addition to deposits, we obtain funds from different
borrowing sources. The primary source of these borrowings is the
Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) system. Those borrowings totaled
$g.0 billion and $8.7 billion at December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. The FHLB functions as a central bank providing credit
for member financial institutions. As a member of the FHLB of
Cincinnati, the Bank is required to own capital stock in the FHLB. It
is authorized to apply for advances on the security of this stock,
certain home mortgages and other assets, provided certain
standards related to creditworthiness have been met. Advances are
made pursuant to several different credit programs, each of which
has its own interest rate and range of maturities. See Note g to the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information
as to the composition, maturities and cost associated with these
advances at December 31, 2002.

In addition to FHLB advances, we use federal funds
purchased and repurchase agreements and other borrowings to fund
operations. Federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements
totaled $283.9 million and $203.3 million at December 31, 2002 and
2001, respectively. Other borrowings totaled $708.9 million and
$304.4 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. See
Notes 10 and 11 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for

further information concerning these borrowings.
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The following table summarizes short-term borrowings, based upon
original issue date, at the end of and during the periods indicated.
For purposes of the table below, our short-term borrowings
consisted of FHLB advances. Interest rates shown do not include the
annualized effect of interest rate risk management instruments.

Year Ended December 31,

{Dollars in thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Short-term borrowings outstanding

at end of period $2,595,000 $1,114,873  $3,410,248
Weighted average rate at end

of period 1.34% 3.03% 6.09%
Maximum month-end balance of

short-term horrowings during

the period $3,900,000 $3,530,248  $5,305,248
Approximate average short-term

borrowings outstanding during

the period 985,497 2,291,246 4,775,470
Approximate weighted average

rate during the period 2.95% 4.84% 5.98%

We use our portfolio of investment securities,
mortgage-backed securities and loans as collateral for our
borrowings, public deposits and for other purposes required or
permitted by law. We do not hold any interests in or sponsor any
special-purpose entities.

LIQUIDITY

Our principal sources of funds are deposits, advances from the
FHLB of Cincinnati, federal funds purchased and repurchase agree-
ments, repayments and maturities of loans and securities, proceeds
from the sale of loans and securities and funds provided by opera-
tions. While scheduled loan, security and interest-bearing deposit
amortization and maturity are relatively predictable sources of
funds, deposit flows and loan and mortgage-backed securities
repayments are greatly influenced by economic conditions, the
general level of interest rates and competition. We utilize particular
sources of funds based on comparative costs and availability. We
generally manage the pricing of deposits to maintain a steady
deposit balance, but from time to time may decide to supplement
deposits with longer term and/or lower cost alternative sources of
funds such as FHLB advances and federal funds purchased and
repurchase agreements. We may, from time to time, decide to price
deposits aggressively for strategic reasons which may result in
significant deposit inflows.
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In the ordinary course of business, we enter into off-balance-sheet
financial instruments consisting of commitments to extend credit,
commercial letters of credit, standby letters of credit and commit-
ments to purchase or sell assets. These financial instruments are
recorded in the financial statements when they are funded or the
related fees are incurred or received. We anticipate that we will have
sufficient funds available to meet our commitments. See Notes 1, 6
and 17 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further
information concerning our commitments.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT
MARKET RISK

Werealize income principally from the difference or spread between
the interest earned on loans, investments and other interest-
earning assets and the interest paid on deposits and borrowings.
Loan volume and yield, as well as the volume of and rates on invest-
rents, deposits and borrowings, are affected by market interest
rates. Additionally, because of the terms and conditions of many of
our loan documents and deposit accounts, a change in interest rates
could also affect the projected maturities of the loan portfolio
and/or the deposit base which could alter our sensitivity to future
changes in interest rates. Accordingly, we consider interest rate risk
to be our most significant market risk.

Interest rate risk management focuses on maintaining
consistent growth in net interest income within Board-approved
policy limits while taking into consideration, among other factors,
our overall credit,'operating income, operating cost, and capital
profile. Qur Asset/Liability Management Committee, which includes
senior management representatives and reports to the Board of
Directors of the Bank, together with the Investment Committee of
the Board of Directors of the Bank, monitors and manages interest
rate risk to maintain an acceptable level of potential change to net
interest income as a result of changes in interest rates.

We use an internal earnings simulation model as our
primary methed to identify and manage our interest rate risk
profile. The model is based on actual cash flows and repricing
characteristics for all financial instruments and incorporates
market-based assumptions regarding the impact of changing inter-
est rates on future volumes and the prepayment rate of applicable
financial instruments. Assumptions based on the historical behav-
ior of deposit rates and balances in relation to changes in interest
rates are also incorporated into the model. These assumptions are
inherently uncertain and, as a result, the model cannot precisely
measure net interest ircome or precisely predict the impact of
fluctuations in interest rates on net interest income. Actual results
will differ from simulated results due to timing, magnitude and
frequency of interest rate changes as well as changes in market

conditions and management strategies.

Using this internal simulation model, net interest income projec-
tions as of December 31, 2002 are referenced below. Our base case
shows our present estimated net interest income sensitivity profile
and assumes no changes in the operating environment or operating
strategies, but assumes interest rates increase or decrease gradu-
ally, in parallel fashion, over the next year and then remain
unchanged. The table indicates the estimated impact on net interest
income under the various interest rate scenarios as a percentage of

base case net interest income projections.

Changes in Estimated Percentage Change
Interest Rates in Future Net Interest Income
(basis points) 12 Months
+200 over one year (4.89)%
+100 over one year {1.99)
—100 over one year 348

A secondary method used to identify and manage our
interest rate risk profile is the static gap analysis. Interest sensi-
tivity gap analysis measures the difference between the assets
and liabilities repricing or maturing within specific time periods.
An asset-sensitive position indicates that there are more rate-sensi-
tive assets than rate-sensitive liabilities repricing or maturing
within specific time periods, which would generally imply a favor-
able impact on net interest income in periods of rising interest
rates and a negative impact in periods of falling rates. A liabil-
ity-sensitive position would generally imply a negative impact
on net interest income in periods of rising rates and a positive
impact in periods of falling rates.

Gap analysis has limitations because it cannot
measure precisely the effect of interest rate movements and
competitive pressures on the repricing and maturity character-
istics of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities.
In addition, a significant portion of our adjustable-rate assets
have limits on their maximum yield, whereas most of our interest-
bearing liabilities are not subject to these limitations. As a
result, certain assets and liabilities indicated as repricing
within a stated period may in fact reprice at different times and
at different volumes, and certain adjustable-rate assets may
reach their yield limits and not reprice.




The following table presents an analysis of our interest-sensitivity
gap position at December 31, 2002. All interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities are shown based on the earlier of their
contractual maturity or repricing date adjusted by forecasted
prepayment and decay rates. Asset prepayment and liébih’ty decay

MATURITY/RATE SENSITIVITY
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rates are selected after considering the current rate environment,
industry prepayment and decay rates, our historical experience, and
the repricing and prepayment characteristics of portfolios acquired
through merger.

December 31, 2002

0-6 712 1-3 35 5-10 Over 10
(Dollars in thousands) Month Months Years Years Years Years Total
Interest-earning assets:
Real estate mortgage
Loans and mortgage-backed securities:
Adjustable rate $4,090,926 § 753,077 $ 823,037 $ 488,763 $ 56,802 $ - $ 6,212,605
Fixed rate 3,426,615 1,964,596 5,462,727 2,739,817 2,338,450 704,574 16,637,779
Retail consumer loans 3,021,343 257,511 1,262,811 578,892 352,375 21,521 5,494,453
Automobile loans 1,206,548 1,053,555 3,012,235 316,136 17,855 - 5,606,329
Consumer finance loans 175,864 113,725 312,685 169,364 157,848 55,286 984,772
Leases 139,168 121,883 418,631 303,481 318,507 831,798 2,133,468
Corporate banking loans 624,132 74,186 308,442 236,652 64,522 10,069 1,318,003
Investment securities, federal funds sold,
interest-bearing deposits and other
interest-earning assets 771,375 1,987 17.438 29,240 48,039 35,568 903,647
Total interest-earning assets 13,455,971 4,340,520 11,618,006 4,862,345 3,355,398 1,658,816 $39,291,056
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits:
Checking, money market and savings
accounts and escrow accounts 270177 7,484,328 8,647,379 1,408,657 - - $17.811,541
Certificates of deposit 4,062,326 2,557,283 2,811,813 131,466 34,226 22,662 9,719,876
FHLB advances 3,003,829 7,999 2,400,690 2,509,858 1,110,483 5,066 9,037,925
Federal funds purchased and
repurchase agreements 283,812 - - - - - 283912
Other horrowings 9413 17,190 253,234 12,773 409,424 6,819 708,853
Total interest-bearing liabilities 7,629,657 10,066,800 14,213,216 4,083,754 1,554,133 34,547 $37,562,107
Excess (deficiency) of interest-earning
assets over interest-bearing liabilities 5,826,314 (5,726,280) (2,595,210 798,591 1,801,265 1,624,269
Impact of hedging {80,395) (409,605) 90,000 - 400,000 -
Adjusted interest-sensitivity gap $5,745,919 $(6.135,885) $(2,505,210) $ 798,591 $2.201,265 $1.624,269
Cumulative excess (deficiency) of interest-earning
assets over interest-bearing liabilities $5,745,819 S (389,965) $(2,895,176) $(2,096,585) $ 104,680 $1,728.949
Cumulative interest-sensitivity gap as a
percentage of total assets at December 31, 2002 13.71% {.93}% {6.91)% (5.00)% 25% 413%
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CAPITAL AND DIVIDENDS

Charter One and Charter One Bank are each subject to certain
regulatory capital requirements. We believe that as of
December 31, 2002, Charter One and Charter One Bank each
individually exceeded all capital requirements to which they were
subject. See Note 14 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for an analysis of our regulatory capital.

On September 12, 2001, the Company entered into an
agreement with a third party that provided the Company with an
option to purchase up to $100 million of Charter One common
stock through the use of forward transactions. These transactions
could have been settled at Charter One’s election on a physical, net
cash or net share basis. On January 8, 2002, the Company settled
open forward transactions for 3.5 million shares of its common
stock through physical share settlement whereby the Company
paid cash of Sg97.0 million, or $27.69 per share, to a third party in
exchange for the 3.5 million shares. Common shares outstanding
and shareholders’ equity were reduced accordingly on the
January 8, 2002 settlement date. Shares and per share data
discussed in this paragraph have not been restated to reflect the
5% stock dividend issued September 30, 2002.

On April 23, 2002, the Company’s Board of Directors
authorized management to repurchase up to 10% of the
Company’s outstanding common stock under a new program of
open market purchases or privately negotiated transactions. This
program replaced the repurchase program that had been in effect
since July 18, 2000 and under which the Company repurchased
approximately 15.0 million shares for a total cost of $394.8
million. As of February 21, 2003, we had repurchased 8.1 million
shares under the new authorization at an average cost of $30.91
per share. Shares and per share data discussed in this paragraph
have not been restated to reflect the 5% stock dividend issued

September 30, 2002.

We continually review the amount of our cash dividend and our
policy of paying quarterly dividends. This payment will depend
upon a number of factors, including capital requirements, regula-
tory limitations, our financial condition, results of operations and
Charter One Bank’s ability to upstream funds. Charter One
depends significantly upon dividends originating from Charter
One Bank to accumulate earnings for payment of cash dividends
to our shareholders. See Note 14 to the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for a discussion of restrictions on Charter
One Bank’s ability to pay cash dividends.

Quarterly high and low sales prices, closing prices and
cash dividends declared for our common stock are shown in the
following table. All prices have been restated to reflect prior stock
dividends. Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock
Exchange under the symbol CF. As of February 21, 2003, there were

approximately 19,000 shareholders of record.

MARKET PRICE AND DIVIDENDS

First Secand Third Fourth Total
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
2002
High $30.95 $34.77 $33.42 $31.48 $34.77
Low 25.19 29.30 25.81 23.89 23.89
Close 2973 3274 2972 28.73 28.73
Dividends declared
and paid 19 21 21 22 83
2001
High $27.20 $28.93 $29.91 $28.06 $29.91
Low 23.04 24.03 22.29 23.43 22.29
Close 2567 28.93 26.88 25.86 25.86
Dividends declared
and paid 16 18 .18 19 N

On January 21, 2003, Charter One declared a regular
quarterly cash dividend of $.22 per share. The cash dividend was paid
on February 20, 2003 to shareholders of record on February 6, 2003.




QUARTERLY RESULTS

The following table presents summarized quarterly data for each of
the years indicated. Earnings per share have been restated to reflect
prior stock dividends.

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

First Second Third Fourth Total
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
{Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
2002
Total interest
income $564,711  $581,254 $568,760 $571,736  $2,286,461
Net interest
income 283,097 297,867 290,267 298599 1,169,830
Provision for loan
and lease losses 28,717 55,277 47,695 60,314 192,003
Net gains 21,727 37,840 83,881 61,585 205,033
Net income 142,485 145895 143,562 145,726 577668
Basic earnings per
share 61 B3 63 65 2.52
Diluted earnings
per share 60 51 B1 63 245
2001
Total interest
income $589,276  $579.942  $6083982 $600,046 $2,378,246
Net interest
income 229,481 227671 253324 279,840 990,416
Provision for loan
and lease losses 17,728 17,076 27,109 38,853 100,766
Net gains 16,034 75,580 26,302 46,336 114,312
Net income 114,790 120412 130,433 135,079 500,714
Basic earnings per
share 50 53 55 .57 215
Diluted earnings
per share 49 51 b4 56 2.10

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Charter One’s Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America and follow general practices within the
industry in which it operates. Application of these principles requires
management to make estimates, assumptions and judgments that
affect the amounts reported in the Consolidated Financial
Statements and accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements. These estimates, assumptions and judgments are based
on information available as of the date of the Consolidated Financial
Statements; accordingly, as this information changes, the
Consolidated Financial Statements could reflect different estimates,
assumptions and judgments. Certain policies inherently have a
greater reliance on the use of estimates, assumptions and judgments
and as such have a greater possibility of producing results that could
be materially different than originally reported. Estimates, assump-
tions and judgments are necessary when assets and liabilities are
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required to be recorded at fair value, when a decline in the value of an
asset not carried on the Consolidated Financial Statements at fair
value warrants an impairment write-down or valuation reserve to be
established, or when an asset or liability needs to be recorded contin-
gent upon a future event. Carrying assets and liabilities at fair value
inherently results in more financial statement volatility. The fair
values and the information used to record valuation adjustments for
certain assets and liabilities are based either on quoted market prices
or are provided by other third-party sources, when available. When
third-party information is not available, valuation adjustments are
estimated in good faith by management including the use of internal
cash flow modeling techniques.

The most significant accounting policies followed by the
Company are presented in Note 1 to the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements. These policies, along with the disclosures
presented in the other Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements and in this Financial Review, provide information on
how significant assets and liabilities are valued in the Consolidated
Financial Statements and how those values are determined. Based
on the valuation techniques used and the sensitivity of financial
statement amounts to the methods, assumptions and estimates
underlying those amounts, management has identified the determi-
nation of the allowance for loan and lease losses, the valuation of
loan servicing assets, and the valuation of lease residuals to be the
accounting areas that require the most subjective or complex
judgments, and as such could be most subject to revision as new
information becomes available.

The allowance for loan and lease losses represents
management’s estimate of probable losses inherent in the loan and
lease portfolio. Determining the amount of the allowance for loan
and lease losses is considered a critical accounting estimate
because it requires significant judgment and assumptions and the
use of estimates related to the amount and timing of expected
future cash flows on impaired nonhomogeneous loans, estimated
losses on pools of homogeneous loans based upon all or a combina-
tion of delinquencies, credit scores, loss migration analysis, and
historical charge-off experience, and consideration of current
economic trends and conditions, all of which may be susceptible to
significant change. The loan and lease portfolio also represents the
largest asset category on the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Condition. See Note 1 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements and Analysis of Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses in
this Financial Review for further discussion regarding the method-
ology used to determine the allowance for loan and lease losses and
a discussion of the factors evaluated by management to determine
the adequacy of the allowance for loan and lease losses.

Loan servicing assets are established and accounted for
based on discounted cash flow modeling techniques which require
management to make estimates regarding the amount and timing
of expected future cash flows, including assumptiens about loan
repayment rates, credit loss experience, and costs to service, as well
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as discount rates that consider the risk involved. Because the
values of these assets are sensitive to changes in assumptions, the
valuation of loan servicing assets is considered a critical account-
ing estimate. Notes 1 and 7 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements include further discussion on the accounting for loan
servicing assets.

Lease financing receivables include a residual value
component, which represents the estimated value of the leased
asset upon the expiration of the lease. The Company leases
various types of equipment under commercial lease financing
arrangements. The valuation of residual assets is considered criti-
cal due to the forecasted residual values by secondary market
research companies, independent appraisals of residual values,
the probability of the lessee purchasing or re-leasing the equip-
ment at the end of the lease term, the Company’s past experience
with realizing residual values of similar equipment, the pace and
effects of technological changes, the financial condition of the
lessee, the estimated useful life of the equipment, the contractually
required condition of the equipment upon lease termination, and
the availability of a secondary market for the used equipment. Notes
1 and 6 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements provide

further discussion of the Company’s lease financing arrangements.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
See Note 2 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a

discussion of recently issued accounting pronouncements.

DISCUSSION OF FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This document, including information incorporated by reference,
contains, and future filings by Charter One on Form 10-K, Form
10-Q and Form 8-K and future oral and written statements and press
releases by Charter One and its management may contain, forward-
looking statements about Charter One which we believe are within
the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995. These forward-looking statements include, without limita-
tion, statements with respect to anticipated future operating and
financial performance, including revenue creation, lending origi-
nation, operating efficiencies, loan sales, charge-offs and loan loss
provisions, deposits and refinancing of liabilities, growth opportu-
nities, interest rates, acquisition and divestiture opportunities,
and synergies, efficiencies, cost savings and funding advantages
expected to be realized from prior acquisitions. These forward-
looking statements are based on currently available competitive,
financial and economic data and management’s views and assump-
tions regarding future events. These forward-looking statements
are inherently uncertain, and investors must recognize that actual
results may differ from those expressed or implied in the forward-
looking statements. Accordingly, Charter One cautions readers not

to ptace undue reliance on any forward-looking statements.

‘Many of these forward-looking statements appear throughout this
document. Words such as may, could, should, would, believe, antic-
ipate, estimate, expect, intend, plan and similar expressions are
intended to identify these forward-looking statements. The impor-
tant factors discussed below, as well as other factors discussed
elsewhere in this document and factors identified in our filings
with the Securities and Exchange Commission and those
presented elsewhere by our management from time to time, could
cause actual results to differ materially from those indicated by
the forward-looking statements made in this document. Among
the factors that could cause our actual results to differ from these

forward-looking statements are:

o the strength of the United States economy in general and the
strength of the local economies in which we conduct our
operations; general economic conditions, either nationally or
regionally, may be less favorable than expected, resulting in,
among other things, a deterioration in the credit quality of

our loans and leases and other assets;

o the effects of, and changes in, trade, monetary and fiscal
policies and laws, including interest rate policies of the
Federal Reserve Board;

o financial markets, monetary and interest rate fluctuations,
particularly the relative relationship of short-term interest

rates to long-term interest rates;

> the timely development of and acceptance of new products
and services of Charter One and the perceived overall value of
these products and services by users, including the features,
pricing and quality compared to competitors’ products and

services;

o the impact of changes in financial services laws and regula-
tions (including laws and regulations concerning taxes,
accounting standards, banking, securities and insurance);
legislative or regulatory changes may adversely affect the
business in which we are engaged;

o the impact of technological changes;

o our ability to successfully integrate acquisitions into our
existing operations, and the availability of new acquisitions,
joint ventures and alliance opportunities that build share-

holder value;
e changes in consumer spending and saving habits; and
e our success at managing the risks involved in the foregoing.

Charter One disclaims any obligation to update or revise
any forward-looking statements based on the occurrence of future

events, the receipt of new information, or otherwise,
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December 31, December 31,
{Doltars in thousands, except per share data) 2002 2001
Assets
Cash accounts § 436970 § 472,658
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 9731 8,355
Federal funds sold and other 512 35,507
Total cash and cash equivalents 447 213 516,520
Investment securities:
Available for sale 210,095 129,312
Held to maturity {fair value of $4,276 and 36,457) 3873 6,274
Mortgage-hacked securities:
Available for sale 11,536,608 8,030,512
Held to maturity (fair value of $565,072 and $1,022,658) 540,781 983,904
Loans and leases, net 25,852,846 25,396,071
Loans held for sale 351,892 332,629
Bank owned life insurance 829,043 808,231
Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal Reserve Bank stock 681,923 517,836
Premises and equipment 353,730 352,235
Accrued interest receivable 154,962 162,065
Real estate and other collateral owned 42,580 54,351
Loan servicing assets 128,564 139,840
Goodwill 386,372 350,839
(Other assets 375,090 293,897
Total assets $41,896,072 $38,174,516
Liabilities
Deposits $27,527,843 $25,123,309
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 9,037,925 8,657,238
Federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements 283912 203,259
Other borrowings 708,853 304,410
Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance 23,595 54,103
Accrued interest payable 38,372 57,704
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,191,747 845,993
Total liabilities 38,812,247 35,246,016
Commitments and contingencies - -
Shareholders’ Equity
Preferred stock — $.01 par value per share; 20,000,000 shares authorized and unissued - ~
Common stack — $.01 par value per share; 360,000,000 shares authorized; 227,571,468 and 224,855,827 shares issued 2,276 2,249
Additional paid-in capital 2,193,085 2,091,767
Retained earnings 824,564 811,093
Less 2,781,151 and 516,082 shares of common stock held in treasury at cost (82,610} {14,586)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 146,500 37,977
Total shareholders’ equity 3,083,825 2,928,500
Total liabilities and sharsholders” equity $41,896,072 $38,174,516

Seg Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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consolidated STATEMENTS OF INCOME

 Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2002 2001 2000
Interest income:
Loans and lzases § 1,671,843 $ 1872270 $ 1810608
Mortgage-backed securities:
Available for sale 519,821 366,475 241,369
Held to maturity 47,747 86,352 120,812
investment securities:
Trading - - 38
Available for sale 11,495 11,180 33,412
Held to maturity 252 409 1,594
Dther interest-eaming assets 35,303 40,960 39,255
Total interest income 2,286,481 2,378,245 2,247,088
Interest expense:
Deposits 654,816 855,283 766,109
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 418,864 498,444 532,583
Other borrowings 44,951 34,103 45,361
Total interest expense 1,116,631 1,387,830 1,344,053
Net interest income 1,169,830 990,416 903,035
Provision for loan and lease losses 192,003 100,766 54,205
Net interest income after provision for loan and lease losses 977,827 889,650 848,830
Other income:
Retail banking 330,735 291,892 243547
Mortgage banking (18.495) 24878 77914
Leasing operations {3,575) 4,020 14,919
Net gains 205,033 14,312 9,271
Bank owned life insurance and other 33,848 38,522 47,220
Total ather income 547 546 473,624 392,871
Administrative expenses;
Compensation and employee benefits 321,167 279,900 270,842
Net occupancy and equipment 116,845 109,388 101,893
Marketing expenses 40,472 31,708 19,527
Federal deposit insurance premiums 4,563 3,918 4011
Merger expenses - ~ 29,4391
Amortization of goodwill - 16,156 16,180
Other administrative expenses 195,925 188,592 162,211
Total administrative expenses 678,972 629,662 603,955
Income before income taxes 846,401 733,612 637,746
Income taxes 268,733 232,898 203,784
Net income $ 577668 § 500714 § 433962
Basic earnings per share (1) $ 2.52 $ 215 $ 184
Diluted earnings per share (1) $ 2.45 3 2.10 § 1.81
Weighted average common shares outstanding (1) 229,302,385 232,547,418 235,617,650
Weighted average common and common equivalent shares outstanding (1) 236,115,843 238,383,474 239,894,826

{1) Restated to reflect the 5% stock dividend issued September 30, 2002.

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Borrowings
of
Employee
Accumulated Investment
Additionat Other and Stack
Common Paid-In Retained Treasury Comprehensive Ownership
{Dollars in thousands, except per share data) Stock Capital Earmings Stock income (Loss) Plan Total
Balance, January 1, 2000 $2,124 $1,736,726 § 734510 $ (65,502} $ (7,020) 3(3,138) $2,397,700
Comprehensive income:
Net income - - 433,962 - - - 433,962
Change in net unrealized gain {loss) on
securities, net of tax and reclassification
adjustment - - - - 30,873 - 30,873
Comprehensive income - - 433,962 - 30,873 - 464,835
5% stock dividend - - (220,721) 220,505 - - (218).
Purchase of 12,340,172 shares of
treasury stock - - - {293,763} - - {293,763}
EISCP loan repayment - - - - - 1,882 1,882
Dividends paid ($.60 per share) (1) - - (144,443) - - - {144,443)
Issuance of common shares in connection
with stock options plans, 2,028,110 shares 3 8,506 {16,515) 38,215 - - 30,209
Balance, December 31, 2000 2,127 1,745,232 786,793 {100,545) 23853 (1,256) 2,456,204
Comprehensive income:
Net income - - 500,714 - - - 500,714
Change in net unrealized gain {loss} on
securities, net of tax and reclassification
adjustment - - - - 14,124 - 14,124
Comprehensive income - - 500,714 - 14,124 - 514,838
5% stock dividend 49 130,002 {279,968) 149,461 - - {456)
Purchase of 4,322,010 shares of
treasury stock - - - (122,597) - - (122,597)
EISOP foan repayment - - - - - 1,256 1,256
Dividends paid ($.71 per sharej (1) - - (166,596 - - - [166,596)
Issuance of comman shares:
Acquisition, 6,887,246 shares 69 196,339 - - - - 196,408
Stock option plans, 2,874,746 shares 4 20,194 {29,850) 59,095 - - 49,443
Balance, December 31, 2001 2,249 2,091,767 811,093 (14,586) 37,977 - 2,928,500
Comprehensive income:
Net income - - 577,668 - - - 577,668
Change in net unrealized gain (loss) on
securities, net of tax and reclassification
adjustment - - - - 108,523 - 108,523
Comprehensive income - - 577,668 - 108,523 - 686,191
5% stock dividend 26 84,259 {329,627 244,523 - - (819)
Purchase of 13,347,900 shares of
treasury stock - - - {398,365 - - (398,365)
Dividends paid {$.83 per share) {1} - - {190,251) - - - {190,251)
issuance of common shares in connection
with stock option plans, 2,986,808 shares 1 17,089 (44,319) 85,818 - - 58,569
Balance, December 31, 2002 $2,276 $2,193,095 $ 824,564 $ {82,610) $146,500 $ - $3,083.825

{1) Restated to reflect the 5% stock dividend issued September 30, 2002,

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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consolidated STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,
(Doltars in thousands) 2002 2001 2000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net income § 577,668 » $ 500714 $ 433,962
Adjustments ta reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Provision for loan and lease losses 192,003 100,766 54,205
Provision for deferred income taxes 156,923 186,502 170,321
Net gains (205,033} (113.270) (7.167)
Accretion of discounts, amortization of premiums, amortization of goodwill, intangibles and depreciation, net 188,192 129,008 95,360
Origination of loans held for sale (2,394,524) (1,635,903} (472,622}
Proceeds from sale of foans held for sale 2,388,522 1,634,460 470,584
Proceeds from investment securities held for trading - - 13418
Other 43,148 138,273 (195,470}
Net cash provided by operating activities 946,897 940,550 562,591
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Net principal disbursed on loans-and leases (7,131,131} (7.156,533) (5,742,717)
Proceeds from principal repayments and maturities of:
Mortgage-backed securities held to maturity 447 534 524,010 400,738
Mortgage-backed securities available for sale 2,114,601 1,172,379 277,562
Investment securities held to maturity 2,718 16,960 9,298
Investment securities availatle for sale 29,328 360,104 59,129
Proceeds from sale of:
Mortgage-backed securities available for sale 12,363,341 3,998,182 4,020,135
Investment securities availatle for sale 1,755 9,656 25,535
Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal Reserve Bank stack 10,305 20,547 20,300
Loan servicing assets - - 36,576
Purchases of:
Mortgage-backed securities available far sale {10,906,956) (2,085,543) (149,429}
Investment securities available for sale (77,232) {4,398) {10,696)
Loans (17,043 (58,723) (18,809)
Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal Reserve Bank stock (42,657} - (80,838)
Loan servicing assets, including those originated {100,430) {61,897) (42,857)
Net cash and cash equivalents (paid) received in connection with business combinations (30,425) 866,742 -
Other (80,540 63,640 {76,125)
Net cash used in investing activities (3.476,773) (2,314,874) (1,272,198
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net increase (decrease) in sho-t-term borrowings 1,580,780 (1,334,087 (1,936,001)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 429,334 1,137,184 4,093,770
Repayments of long-term borrowings (1,154,101) (1,329,166) {1,713,980)
Increase (decrease) in, net of business combinations:
Deposits 2,165,930 3,142,587 531,304
Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance (30,508) (16,745) (19,548)
Payment of dividends on comman stock {191,070) {167,052) (144,859)
Proceeds from issuance of comman stock 58,569 49,443 30,209
Purchase of treasury stock {398,365) (122,597) {293,763)
Net cash provided by financing activities 2,460,569 1,359,587 547,332
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (69,307) (14,737) (162.275)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 516,520 531,257 693,532
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 447213 $ 516,520 $ 531,257
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest on deposits and barrowings § 1124274 $ 1,380,560 $1,385,269
Income taxes 95,000 31,500 31,298
Supplemental Schedule of Noncash Activities
Loans exchanged for mortgage-hacked securities 6,667,082 6,708,253 3,991,087

See Notes to Consalidated Financial Statements.
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notes to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

noTE1l. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of Charter One Financial, Inc. (“Charter
One” or the “Company”), a financial holding company, and Charter
One Bank, N.A. (the “Bank”), conform to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and prevailing
practices within the banking industry. A summary of the more
significant accounting policies follows:

Nature of Operations - Headquartered in Cleveland,
Ohio, Charter One is a financial holding company. Charter One is
a Delaware corporation and owns all of the outstanding capital
stock of Charter One Bank, N.A. The Company's principal line of
business is consumer banking which includes retail banking,
mortgage banking and other related financial services. Retail
banking provides a full range of deposit products, consumer
loans, business lending and commercial real estate loans.

On January 7, 2002, the Company announced that the
Bank filed an application with the Office of the Comptroller of
the Currency (“OCC") to convert from a thrift to a national bank
charter. The conversion was effective May 7, 2002 and resulted in
changing the Bank’s name to Charter One Bank, N.A. References
to Charter One Bank or the Bank shall mean Charter One Bank,
N.A. or Charter One Bank, F.S.B. as the context requires.

On May 16, 2002, Charter One Commercial, a New York
state-chartered commercial bank, was merged into the Bank. On
August g, 2002, Charter Bank, a Michigan state-chartered
commercial bank, was merged into the Bank. On August 21, 2002,
Charter Michigan Bancorp, Inc., a second-tier bank holding
company, was merged into Charter One Financial, Inc.

Basis of Presentation - The Consolidated Financial
Statements include the accounts of the Company, the Bank and
its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions and
balances have been eliminated. Certain items in the Consolidated
Financial Statements for 2001 and 2000 have been reclassified to
conform to the 2002 presentation.

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company
conform with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make
estimates, assumptions and judgments that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates,
assumptions and judgments.

Securities - Securities consist of mortgage-backed
securities, U.S. Government and federal agency obligations, float-
ing-rate notes, corporate bonds, commercial paper and state and
local government obligations. Securities are classified as trading,
available for sale or held to maturity upon their acquisition.
Securities classified as trading on the Consolidated Statements of
Financial Condition are carried at estimated fair value with the

unrealized holding gain or loss recorded in the Consolidated

Statements of Income. Securities classified as available for sale on
the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition are carried
at estimated fair value with the unrealized holding gain or loss
reflected as a component of shareholders’ equity. Securities
classified as held to maturity on the Consolidated Statements of
Financial Condition are carried at amortized cost. Premiums and
discounts are recognized in interest income over the period to
maturity by the level yield method. Realized gains or losses on the
sale of debt securities are recorded based on the amortized cost of
the specific securities sold.

Loans - Loans intended for sale are recorded at the
lower of aggregate cost or fair value. Net unrealized losses are rec-
ognized through a valuation allowance by a charge to income.
Gains or losses on the sale of loans are determined under the spe-
cific identification method.

Loans that management has the intent and ability to
hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or payoff are
reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances, net of
deferred fees or costs on originated loans or unamortized
premiums or discounts on purchased loans. Discounts and
premiums are accreted or amortized using the interest method
over the remaining period to contractual maturity adjusted for
anticipated prepayments. Unamortized net fees or costs are
recognized upon early repayment of the loans. Unamortized net
fees or costs on loans sold are included in the basis of the loans in
calculating gains and losses.

A loan is considered to be impaired when, based on
current information and events, it is probable that a creditor will be
unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms
of the loan agreement. To determine if the impairment criteria have
been met, the Bank performs a review of all corporate banking and
commercial real estate loans over $1 million that are internally clas-
sified as substandard, doubtful or loss. If the impairment criteria
have been met, a reserve is calculated according to Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 114, “Accounting by
Creditors for Impairment of a Loan.”

Underperforming assets consist of (1) nonperforming
loans (nonaccrual loans and leases, restructured real estate
mortgage loans and real estate acquired through foreclosure and
other collateral owned) and (2) accruing loans and leases
delinquent more than go days. A loan or lease, including an
impaired loan, is classified as nonaccrual when collectibility is in
doubt. This is generally when the borrower is go days past due on
contractual principal or interest payments on commercial real
estate loans, corporate banking loans and leases. With respect to
automobile loans, interest continues to accrue until the
automobile loan reaches 120-day delinquency. At that point, the
automobile loan is charged off completely. Consumer finance
loans, along with other loans backed by single-family residential
real estate collateral, continue to accrue interest until the loan is
six payments past due, at which point the loan is placed on
nonaccrual. A loan may be considered impaired but remain on

accrual status when the borrower demonstrates (by continuing to
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make payments) a willingness to keep the loans current. When a
loan is placed on nonaccrual status, unpaid interest is reversed
and an allowance is established by a charge to interest income
equal to all accrued interest. Income is subsequently recognized
only to the extent that cash payments are received. Loans are
returned to accrual status when, in management’s judgment, the
borrower has the ability and intent to make periodic principal and
interest payments (this generally requires that the loan be
brought current in accordance with its original contractual
terms). Loans and leases are classified as accruing loans or leases
delinquent more than 9o days when the loan or lease is more than
9o days past due and, in management’s judgment, the borrower
has the ability and intent to make periodic interest and principal
payments. Loans are classified as restructured when concessions
are made to borrowers with respect to the principal balance, inter-
est rate or other terms due to the inability of the borrower to meet
the obligation under the original terms.

The Bank charges off principal at the earlier of (i) when
a loss of principal has been deemed to have occurred as a result of
the book value exceeding the fair value or net realizable value, or
(ii) when collection efforts have ceased. Specifically with respect
to automobile loans, if such loans experience repossession or
bankruptcies prior to reaching the 120-day delinquency point,
they are written down to the net realizable value of the collateral
at the time of the repossession or bankruptcy discharge. Any
automobile loan that reaches the 120-day delinquency point is
charged off completely. Consumer finance loans, along with other
loans backed by single-family residential real estate collateral, are
reflected at the lower of cost or net realizable value at the earliest
point of six payments past due or foreclosure.

Lease Accounting - The Company classifies leases at
the inception of the lease in accordance with SFAS No. 13,
“Accounting for Leases.” Estimated residual values are reviewed
periodically and reduced if necessary.

Direct Financing Leases - At lease inception, the pres-
ent values of future rentals and of the residual are recorded as net
investment in direct financing leases. Unearned interest income
is amortized to interest income over the lease term to produce a
constant percentage return on the investment. Sales commissions
and other direct costs incurred in direct financing leases are cap-
italized and recorded as part of the net investment in leases and
are amortized over the lease term.

Sales-Type-Leases - At the inception of the lease, the
present value of future rentals is recorded as an equipment sale.
Equipment cost less the present value of the residual is recorded
as cost of equipment sold. Accordingly, a dealer profit is recog-
nized at lease inception. The present values of future rentals and
of the residual are recorded as net investment in sales-type leases.
Unearned income is amortized to interest income over the lease
term to produce a constant percentage return on the investment.

Leveraged Leades - Income on leveraged leases is
recognized at a constant rate of return on the outstanding
investment in the lease, net of the related deferred tax liability.

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses - The Company
maintains an allowance for loan and lease losses adequate to
absorb estimated probable losses inherent in the loan and lease
portfolio. The allowance for loan and lease losses consists of
specific reserves for individual credits and general reserves for
types or portfolios of loans based on historical loan loss
experience, adjusted for concentrations and the current economic
environment. All outstanding leans and leases are considered in
evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for loan and lease losses.
Increases to the allowance for loan and lease losses are made by
charges to the provision for loan and lease losses. Loans deemed
to be uncollectible are charged against the allowance for loan and
lease losses. Recoveries of previously charged-off amounts are
credited to the allowance for loan and leases losses.

In determining the adequacy of the allowance for loan

and lease losses, management reviews and evaluates on a
quarterly basis the potential credit risk in the loan and lease
portfolio. This evaluation process is documented by senior man-
agement and approved by the Company’s Board of Directors.
Management evaluates homogeneous consumer oriented loans,
such as 1-4 family mortgage loans and retail consumer loans,
based upon all or a combination of delinquencies, credit scores,
loss migration analysis and charge-off experience. Management
supplements this analysis by reviewing the geographical lending
areas involved and their local economic and political trends, the
nature and volume of the portfolio, regulatory examination find-
ings, specific grading systems applied and any other known fac-
tors which may impact future credit losses. Nonhomogeneous
loans, generally defined as commercial real estate loans, corpo-
rate banking loans and leases, are underwritten, approved and
risk rated individually at inception. On a monthly basis, manage-
ment re-evaluates the risk ratings on these nonhomogeneous
loans if loan relationships exceed certain dollar thresholds estab-
lished for the respective portfolios. The Company’s risk rating
methodology uses nine grade levels to stratify each portfolio.
Many factors are considered when these grades are assigned to
individual loans and leases such as current and past delinquency,
financial statements of the borrower, current net realizable value
of collateral, the general economic environment and the specific
economic trends affecting the individual loan or lease. During this
evaluation process, individual loans are identified and evaluated
for impairment as prescribed under SFAS No. 114, “Accounting by
Creditors for Impairment of a Loan.” Impairment losses are recog-
nized when, based upon current information, it is probable that
the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due according to
the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Impairment is meas-
ured either by a loan’s observable market value, fair value of the
collateral or the present value of future cash flows discounted at
the loan’s effective interest rate. These impairment losses,
combined with other probable losses as determined in the loan
and lease portfolio evaluation process, are charged to the
allowance for loan and lease losses. This data is then presented to
the Company’s Reserve Adequacy Committee, comprised of senior




members of management and independent directors. The Reserve
Adequacy Committee determines the level of allowance for loan
and lease losses necessary to maintain the allowance for loan and
lease losses at an amount considered adequate to absorb probable
loan and lease losses inherent in the portfolio. Although manage-
ment believes that it uses the best information available to
determine the adequacy of the allowance for loan and lease losses,
future adjustments to the allowance may be necessary and results
of operations could be significantly and adversely affected if
circumstances differ substantially from the assumptions used in
making the determinations.

Loan Fees - Loan origination fees received for loans,
net of direct origination costs, are deferred and amortized to inter-
est income over the contractual lives of the loans using the level
yield method. Fees received for loan commitments that are
expected to be drawn, based on the Bank’s experience with similar
commitments, are deferred and amortized over the lives of
the loans using the level yield method. Fees for other loan
commitments are deferred and amortized over the loan commit-
ment period on a straight-line basis. Unamortized deferred loan
fees or costs related to loans paid off are included in income,
Unamortized net fees or costs on loans sold are included in the
basis of the loans in calculating gains and losses. Amortization of
net deferred fees is discontinued for loans that are deemed to be
nonperforming.

Loan Servicing Assets - The cost of mortgage loans
sold, with servicing rights retained, is allocated between the loans
and the servicing rights based on their estimated fair values at
time of loan sale. The estimated fair value of loan servicing assets
is determined based on expected future cash flows discounted at
an interest rate commensurate with the servicing risks involved.
In 2002 and 2001, virtually all such recorded assets related to
residential mortgage loans. Loan servicing assets are presented in
the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition net of
accumulated amortization, which isrecorded in proportion to, and
over the period of, net servicing income. Capitalized loan
servicing assets are stratified based on predominant risk
characteristics of underlying loans for the purpose of evaluating
impairment. An allowance is then established in the event the
recorded value of an individual stratum exceeds fair value.

Derivatives - The Company uses derivatives as a means
of managing its interest rate risk profile (defined as the sensitivity
of the Company’s earnings and net portfolio value to changes in
interest rates). Interest rate swaps are the derivative instruments
that Charter One uses as part of its interest rate risk management
strategy. Interest rate swap contracts are exchanges of interest
payments, based on a common notional amount and maturity date.

For those derivative instruments that are designated
and qualify as hedging instruments, the Company designates the
hedging instrument, based upon the exposure being hedged, as
either a fair value or cash flow hedge in accordance with SFAS No.
133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities,” as amended. If it is determined that the derivative
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instrument is not highly effective as a hedge, hedge accounting
would be discontinued and the change in the fair value of the
derivative instrument would be recorded in net income.

Off-Balance-Sheet Financial Instruments - In the ordi-
nary course of business, the Company enters into off-balance-sheet
financial instruments consisting of commitments to extend
credit, commercial letters of credit, standby letters of credit and
commitments to purchase or sell assets. Such financial
instruments are recorded in the financial statements when they
are funded or the related fees are incurred or received. The
Company does mnot utilize any special-purpose entities in
connection with off-balance-sheet financial instruments.

Premises and Equipment - Premises and equipment
and real estate held for investment are stated at cost less accumu-
lated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation is computed
using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Real Estate Owned - Real estate owned, including
property acquired in settlement of foreclosed loans, is carried at the
lower of cost or estimated fair value less estimated cost to sell at the
date of foreclosure. Costs relating to the development and improve-
ment of real estate owned are capitalized, whereas costs relating to
holding and maintaining the property are charged to expense.

Goodwill - Goodwill represents the purchase price of
acquired operations in excess of the fair value of their net identifi-
able assets at the date of acquisition. For business combinations
and branch acquisitions initiated prior to June 30, 2001, goodwill
was being amortized using the straight-line method over 15 years or
less. Amortization of goodwill for past business combinations
ceased upon adoption of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets” on January 1, 2002. For business combinations
initiated after June 30, 2001, goodwill is not subject to amortization
in accordance with SFAS No. 142. Rather, goodwill is tested for
impairment on an annual basis as of the beginning of each fiscal
year or when events and circumnstances indicate that the value of
goodwill has been diminished or impaired.

Income Taxes - Income taxes have been provided using
the liability method in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting
for Income Taxes.” The Company files a consolidated federal
income tax return.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - For purposes
of the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, the Company
considers all highly liquid investments with a term of three
months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash flows from interest
rate risk management instruments are classified based on the
assets or liabilities hedged.

Stock-Based Compensation - The Company applies
Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, "Accounting
for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations in
accounting for its plans. Accordingly, no stock-based employee
compensation cost is reflected in net income, as all options grant-
ed under those plans had an exercise price equal to the market
value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. Had
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stock-based employee compensation cost of the Company’s stock
option plans been determined based on the fair value at the grant
dates for awards under those plans consistent with the method of
SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” as
amended by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation - Transition and Disclosure,” the Company’s net
income and earnings per share would have been reduced to the pro
forma amounts indicated below (per share data has been restated
to reflect all stock dividends as of December 31, 2002):

Year Ended December 31,

{Dollars in thousands, except per share fata) 2002 2001 2000
Net income:
As reparted $577,668  $500,714  $433,962
Less: Total stock-based employee
compensation expense determined
under the fair value method for all
awards, net of tax 26,836 25,789 24,144
Pro forma $550,832  $474945  $409,818
Basic earnings per share:
As reported $ 252 § 215 § 184
Pro forma 2.40 2.04 1.74
Diluted earnings per share:
As reported 245 210 1.81
Pro forma 233 1.99 1.71

The fair value of each option grant was estimated on the
date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with

the following assumptions used for grants in 2002, 2001 and 2000:

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Dividend yield 3.00% 2.00% 2.00%
Volatility 3594-38.13% 34.40-43.66% 43.00-45.41%
Risk-free interest rate 3.41-4.98% 4.42-555%  5.20-6.78%
Life of grant 6 years 7 years 7 years

The estimated weighted-average grant-date fair value
(based on the above option-pricing model and assumptions) for
options granted in 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $8.90, $10.68 and
$8.45, respectively.

Stock Dividends - OnJuly17, 2002, the Board of Directors
of the Company approved a 5% stock dividend which was distributed
on September 30, 2002 to shareholders of record on September 13,
2002. On July 18, 2001, the Board of Directors of the Company
approved a 5% stock dividend which was distributed on September
28, 2001 to shareholders of record on September 14, 2001. On July 18,
2000, the Board of Directors of the Company approved a 5% stock
dividend which was distributed on September 30, 2000 to share-
holders of record on September 14, 2000.

Earnings Per Share - Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is based on
the weighted average number of common shares outstanding dur-
ing the year. Diluted EPS is based on the weighted average number
of common shares and common share equivalents outstanding
during the year. All shares and per share data have been restated
to reflect all prior stock dividends.

Year Ended December 31,

{Dallars in thousands, except per share data) 2002 2001 2000
Basic earnings per share:
Net Income § 577668 $ 500714 § 433962
Weighted average common
shares outstanding 229,302,385 232547418 235,617,650
Basic eamnings per share $ 252 § 215§ 1.84
Diluted earnings per share:
Net Income § 577668 § 500714 § 433982
Weighted average common
shares outstanding 229,302,385 232,547,418 235,617,650
Add comman stock equivalents
for shares issuable under
stock option plans 6,813,458 5,836,056 4,277,176
Weighted average common and
comman equivalent shares
outstanding 236,115,843 238,383,474 239,894,876
Diluted earnings per share $ 245 § 210 § 1.81

Comprehensive Income - In accordance with SFAS
No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Incame,” reclassification
adjustments have been determined for all components of other
comprehensive income reported in the Company's Consolidated
Statements of Shareholders’ Equity. Amounts presented within
those statements are net of the following reclassification adjust-

ments and related tax expense:

Year Ended December 31,

(Dottars in thousands) 2002 2001 2000
QOther comprehensive income, before tax:
Net unrealized holding gain on securities $425839 $134,889 $54,555
Reclassification adjustment for gains
included in net income {259,374) (112,804} {7,083}
Other comprehensive income, before tax 166,465 21,885 47472
Income tax expense related to items of other
comprehensive income 57,842 7,761 16,598
Other comprehensive income, net of tax $108523 § 14124  $30,873

Segments - Charter One has one operating segment,
consumer banking, which offers an array of products and services
to its customers. Pursuant to its consumer banking strategy,
emphasis is placed on building relationships and identifying
cross-sell opportunities with its customers, as opposed to building
specific lines of business. As a result, Charter One works as an
integrated unit, with business line emphasis and product offer-
ings changing over time as needs and demands change.




NoTE 2. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)
issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” These statements change
the accounting for business combinations and goodwill. SFAS No.
141 requires that the purchase method of accounting be used for
all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. Use of the
pooling-of-interests method is prohibited. SFAS No. 142 changes
the accounting for goodwill and certain intangible assets from an
amortization method to an impairment-only approach. Any good-
will arising from business combinations initiated after June 30,
2001 is not amortized. On an annual basis, and when there is rea-
son to suspect that their values have been diminished or impaired,
goodwill and certain intangible assets must be tested for impair-
ment and write-downs may be necessary. Additionally, amortiza-
tion of goodwill recorded for past business combinations ceased
upon adoption of SFAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002.

SFAS No. 142 requires a transitional impairment test be
applied to all goodwill within the first half of 2002 and any resulting
impairment loss be reported as a change in accounting principle.
The Company has performed a transitional impairment test on its
goodwill assets as of January 1, 2002. No impairment loss was rec-
ognized as a result of this test. The Company will continue to per-
form its annual impairment test as of the beginning of each year.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission
of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections.” SFAS No. 145
updates, clarifies, and simplifies certain existing accounting pro-
nouncements beginning at various dates in 2002 and 2003. SFAS
No. 145 rescinds SFAS No. 4, “Reporting Gains and Losses from
Extinguishment of Debt,” and SFAS No. 64, “Extinguishments of
Debt Made to Satisfy Sinking - Fund Requirements,” which
required net gains or losses from the extinguishment of debt to be
classified as an extraordinary item in the income statement.
These gains and losses will now be classified as extraordinary
only if they meet the criteria for such classification as outlined
in APB Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations -
Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and
Transactions,” which allows for extraordinary treatment if the
item is material and both unusual and infrequent in nature. SFAS
No. 145 also rescinds SFAS No. 44, “"Accounting for Intangible
Assets of Motor Carriers,” related to the accounting for intangible
assets for motor carriers and amends SFAS No. 13 to require cer-
tain lease modifications that have economic effects similar to
sale-leaseback transactions to be accounted for as such. The
Company early adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 145 related to
the rescission of SFAS No. 4. As part of the early adoption, the
Company reduced “net gains” in the “other income” section of the
Consolidated Statements of Income to reflect all losses on extin-
guishment of debt that do not meet the criteria in APB No. 30.
Such losses on extinguishment of debt were classified as extraor-
dinary items in prior periods.
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In October 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 147,
“Acquisitions of Certain Financial Institutions, an amendment of
FASB Statements No. 72 and 144 and FASB Interpretation No. 9.
SFAS No. 72, “Accounting for Certain Acquisitions of Banking or
Thrift Institutions,” and FASB Interpretation No. 9, “Applying APB
Opinions No. 16 and 17 When a Savings and Loan Association ora
Similar Institution Is Acquired in a Business Combination
Accounted for by the Purchase Method,” provided interpretive
guidance on the application of the purchase method to acquisi-
tions of financial institutions. Except for transactions between
two or more mutual enterprises, SFAS No. 147 removes acquisi-
tions of financial institutions from the scope of both SFAS No. 72
and Interpretation ¢ and requires that those transactions be
accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 141 and SFAS No. 142.
Thus, the requirement in SFAS No. 72 to recognize (and subse-
quently amortize) any excess of the fair value of liabilities
assumed over the fair value of tangible and identifiable intangible
assets acquired as an unidentifiable intangible asset no longer
applies to acquisitions within the scope of SFAS No. 147. In addi-
tion, SFAS No. 147 amends SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” to include in its
scope long-term customer-relationship intangible assets of finan-
cial institutions such as depositor- and borrower-relationship
intangible assets and credit cardholder intangible assets.
Consequently, those intangible assets are subject to the same
undiscounted cash flow recoverability test and impairment loss
recognition and measurement provisions that SFAS No. 144
requires for other long-lived assets that are held and used.

Effective September 30, 2002, the Company early adopted
SFAS No. 147. In accordance with the transition provisions of SFAS
No. 147, the Company reversed its amortization of goodwill related
to branch acquisitions recognized in the Consolidated Financial
Statements since the Company’s adoption of SFAS No. 142 on
January 1, 2002. The amounts reversed to goodwill were $3.9 mil-
lion, before tax, for the quarter ended March 31, 2002 and $3.8 mil-
lion, before tax, for the quarter ended June 30, 2002, adding $.01 to
previously reported earnings per share for each respective quarter.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation
(“FIN”) No. 45,

Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of

“Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure

Indebtedness of Others.” This interpretation expands the disclo-
sures to be made by a guarantor in its financial statements about its
obligations under certain guarantees and requires the guarantor to
recognize a liability for the fair value of an obligation assumed
under a guarantee. FIN 45 clarifies the requirements of SFAS No. g,
“Accounting for Contingencies,” relating to guarantees. In general,
FIN 45 applies to contracts or indemnification agreements that con-
tingently require the guarantor to make payments to the guaranteed
party based on changes in an underlying that is related to an asset,
liability, or equity security of the guaranteed party. Certain guaran-
tee contracts are excluded from both the disclosure and recognition
requirements of FIN 45, including, among others, guarantees relat-
ing to employee compensation, residual value guarantees under

4
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capital lease arrangements, commercial letters of credit, loan com-
mitments, subordinated interests in a special purpose entity, and
guarantees of a company’s own future performance. Other guaran-
tees are subject to the disclosure requirements of FIN 45 but not to
the recognition provisions and include, among others, a guarantee
accounted for as a derivative instrument under SFAS No. 133, a par-
ent’s guarantee of debt owed to a third party by its subsidiary or
vice versa, and a guarantee which is based on performance, not
price. The disclosure requirements of FIN 45 are effective for the
Company as of December 31, 2002, and require disclosure of the
nature of the guarantee, the maximum potential amount of future
payments that the guarantor could be required to make under the
guarantee, and the current amount of the liability, if any, for the
guarantor’s obligations under the guarantee. The recognition
requirements of FIN 45 are to be applied prospectively to guaran-
tees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. Guarantees that
have been entered into by the Company are disclosed in Note 6 to
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company
does not expect the requirements of FIN 45 to have a material
impact on its consolidated financial condition or results of
operations.

On December 31, 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and
Disclosure,” an amendment of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation.” SFAS No. 148 provides alternative
methods of transition for an entity that voluntarily changes to the
fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation. It also amends the disclosure provisions of SFAS
No. 123 to require prominent disclosure about the effects on
reported net income of an entity’s accounting policy decisions
with respect to stock-based employee compensation. Finally, SFAS
No. 148 amends APB Opinion No. 28, “Interim Financial
Reporting,” to require disclosure about those effects in interim
financial information. The Company has elected to continue appli-
cation of APB Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations in
accounting for its stock-based employee compensation plans.
Accordingly, no stock-hased employee compensation cost is, or
expected to be, reflected in net income, as all options granted
under the Company’s stock-based employee compensation plans
had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying
comnmon stock on the date of grant. However, the pro forma impact
of accounting for these stock-based employee compensation plans
at fair value is, and will continue, to be disclosed in the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN No. 46,
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities”. FIN 46 provides
guidance on how to identify a variable interest entity (*VIE”) and
determine when the assets, liabilities, noncontrolling interests,
and results of operations of a VIE need to be included in a com-
pany’s consolidated financial statements. FIN 46 also requires
additional disclosures by primary beneficiaries and other signifi-
cantvariable interest holders. The provisions of the interpretation

became effective upon issuance. The Company believes the adop-
tion of this interpretation will not have a material impact on its
consolidated financial position or results of operations.

NoTE 3. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
The tables below set forth the Company’s business combinations
and asset acquisitions during the past three years.

MERGERS
Assets at Comman Methad
Date Date of Shares Cash of Goodwilt
{Dollars in thousands) Completed Merger Issued Consideration Accounting Recorded

Charter National

Bancarp,
Inc.(1)2) May 24,2002 $ 353,231 - $90425 Purchase $ 34,793
Alliance
Bancorp(3) July 2,2001 2,019,000 6,887,805 50,234 Purchase 138814

(1) The results of this acquisition have been included in the Consolidated Financial Statements
since May 24. 2002. Pro forma results of operations for this acquisition, had the acquisition
occurred as of January 1, 2002 and January 1, 2001, is not significant and accordingly. is not
provided.

(2} The Company recorded $25.0 million as an indefinite-lived trademark name intangible in addi-
tion to the $34.8 million recorded as goodwill.

{3) The results of this acquisition have been included in the Consolidated Financial Statements
since fuly 2, 2001 Pro forma results of operations for this acquisition, had the acquisition
accurred as of January 1, 2001 and January 1, 2000, is not significant and accordingly. is not
provided.

BRANCH PURCHASES

Date Deposits toans  Goodwill

{Dollars in thousands) Branches Completed Assumed  Acquired  Recorded

Superiar Federal

Bank, £S.B. 17 November 19,2001 $1,022,023 $3370 $55984

The Company did not complete any business combina-
tions or branch purchases in 2000.

Upon the adoption of SFAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002,
the Company ceased its amortization of goodwill. The following
table shows the pro forma effects of applying SFAS No. 142 to the
2001 and 2000 periods:

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands, except per share datat 2002 2001 2000
Reparted net income $577,668 3500714 9433962
Add: Goodwill amartization, after tax - 10,501 10,517

Adjusted net income $577,668 $511,215 $444,479

Basic earnings per share:

Reported net incame $ 252 § 215 % 184

Add: Goodwill amortization, after tax - .05 04
Adjusted net income § 252 § 220 $ 188

Diluted earnings per share:

Reported net income § 245 § 210 $ 181

Add: Goodwill amortization, after tax - .04 04
Adjusted net income § 245 § 214 § 185




nOTE 4. INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Investment securities at December 31,2002, 2001 and 2000, are as

follows:

December 31, 2002

Gross Gross
Amortized  Unrealized Unvealized Fair
{Doflars in thousands) Cost Gains Losses Value
Available for Sale
U.S. Treasury and
agency securities § 92477 $1,789 $2,804 § 91462
Securities of U.S. states and
palitical subdivisions 1,843 49 - 1,898
Corporate and other securities 113,181 6,031 2477 116,735
Total investment securities
available for sale 207,507 7,869 5,281 210,095
Held to Maturity
Securities of U.S. states and
political subdivisions 3,943 303 - 4,248
Corporate and other securities 30 - - 30
Total investment securities
held to maturity 3873 303 - 4,276
Totat $211,480 38,172 $5,281  $214,37
December 31, 2001
Gross Gross
Amortized  Unrealized Unrealized Fair
{Daltars in thousands} Cost Gains Lossas Value
Available for Sale
U.S. Treasury and
agency securities $ 30,344 $ 586 $ 1 $30929
Securities of U.S. states and
political subdivisions 8 - - 8
Corporate and other securities 101,899 830 4,354 98,375
Total investment securities
available for sale 132,251 1,416 4,355 129,312
Held to Maturity
Securities of U.S. states and
political subdivisions 5,839 194 2 6,031
Corporate and other securities 435 1 - 436
Total investment securities
held to maturity 6274 195 2 6,467
Total $138,525 $1611 $4,357  $135.779
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December 31, 2000

Gross Gross
Amortized  Unrealized tUnreafized Fair
{Dollars in thousands) Cost Gains Losses Value
Availabie for Sale
U.S. Treasury and
agency securities $334,065 § 282 $ 417 $333,900
Securities of U.S. states and
political subdivisions 11 - - 1
Corporate and other securities 102,032 710 9,952 92,790
Total investment securities
available for sale 436,108 962 10,369 426,701
Held to Maturity
U.S. Treasury and
agency securities 15,000 3 - 15,003
Securities of U.S. states and
political subdivisions 7,074 160 B 7228
Corporate and other securities 440 - - 440
Total investment securities
held to maturity 22,514 183 6 22,671
Total $458,622 $1,125 $10,375  $449,372

The weighted average interest rate on investment secu-

rities was 5.64%, 8.21% and 7.40% at December 31, 2002, 2001 and

2000, respectively.

Investment securities by contractual maturity as of

December 31, 2002 are shown below:

Due After One But
Due Within Cne Year Within Five Years
Amortized Fair Amartized Fair
{Doilars in thousands| Cost Value Yield Cost Value Yietd
U.S. Treasury and
agency securities  $27,142  $27.192 2.04% $19,742 $20,855 4.08%
Securities of U.S.
states and political
subdivisions 3N 393 2.85 2834 3.013 4.45
Corporate and other
securities 1,704 1,703 241 7.215 7435 494
Total $29,237  $29,288 207% $29,791  $31,303 4.32%
Due After Five But
Within Ten Years Due After Ten Years
Amortized Fair Amartized Fair
{Collars in thousands) Cost Value Yield Cost Value Yield
U.S. Treasury and
agency securities  $2,275  $2.373 343% $ 43,318 $ 41,042 1.76%
Securities of U.S.
states and political
subdivisions 2,567 2,738 482 - - -
Corporate and other
securities - - - 104292 107.627 8.69
Total 34842 35111 417% $147,610 $148,663 5.66%

Gains on sales were $.4 million, $3.2 million and $11.2

million for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,

respectively. Losses on sales were $2g9,000 for the year ended

December 31, 2002. No losses on sales were realized during the

years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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Decamber 31, 2000

NoTE5. MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES
Gross Gross

Mortgage-backed securities at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, Amortized  Unrealized  Unrealized Fair
are as follows: (Dollars in thousands) Cost Gains Losses Value
December 31, 2002 Available for Sale
) Gross Gross Participation certificates:
Amartized  Unrealized  Unrealized Fair

U.S. gavernmant and
agency issues $3,012,369  $39,162  $ 3,959 $3,047572
Collateralized mortgage obligations:
U.S. government and
U.S. govemment and agency issues 519745 4970 722 523,39
agency issues $ 9.836,607 $214,670 $ 231 $10,051,046 Private issues 507,395 9.840 1605 515,630
Collateralized mortgage obtigations:
U.S. government and
agency issues 1,065,021 3,99 499 1,088,518

Private issues 412,247 5,156 359 417,044 Held to Maturity
Participation certificates:

U.S. government and

{Dollars in thousands} Cost Gains Losses Value

Available for Sale
Participation certificates:

Total mortgage-backed
securities available for sale 4,039,510 53,972 6,286 4,087,196

Total mortgage-backed
securities avaitable for sale 11313875 223,822 1,089 11,536,608

) agency issues 672,638 12,600 308 684,930
Held to Maturity Private issues 128407 518 1787 122,138
Participation certificates: Collateralized mortgage obligations:
U.S. government anc U.S. gavernment and
agency issues 311398 16390 6 327783 agency issues 268575 9,139 439 277.275
Private issues SL717 399 " 52,105 Private issuss 436555 7350 1724 M8
Collateralized martgage abligations: Total mortgage-backed
U.S. government and securities held to maturity 1506175 29608 4258 1531525
agency issues 96,130 4,806 - 100,936
Private issuss 81536 2741 29 84248 Total $5,545,685 $83,580 $10,544 $5,618,721
Total rjf_rtgahgelst»jbtackedt iy 510781 24377 1 565072 Sales of mortgage-backed securities resulted in gains of
securntes ne a maturl ' ' A
$260.0 million in 2002, $109.6 million in 2001 and $19.7 million in
Total $11.854,656  $248,159 $1.135 $12,101,680

2000. Losses on sales were $1.0 million in 2002 and $23.9 million

in 2000. No losses on sales were realized in 2001.
December 31, 2001

Gross Grass
Amortized  Unrealized Unrealized Fair
{Dolfars in thousands) Cost Gains Losses Value

Available for Sale
Participation certificates:
U.S. government and
agency issues $6,914337 § 58,000 $21,972 $6,950,425
Collateralized mortgage obligations:
U.S. government and
agency issues 508,093 10,168 0 518,251
Private issues 545,998 16,245 407 561,836

—_

Total mortgage-backed
securities available for sale 7,968,488 84,413 22,389 8,030,512

Held to Maturity
Participation certificates:
U.S. government and
agency issues 475,622 19,871 4 495,489
Private issues 80,203 973 171 91,005
Collateralized mortgage obligations:
U.S. government and
agency issues 185,944 10,187 80 196,051
Private issues 232,135 8212 234 240,113

Total mortgage-hacked
securities held to maturity 983,904 39,243 489 1,022,658

Total $8.952,392 §123656 322878 $9,083,170
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noTE6. LOANS AND LEASES

Loans and leases consist of the following:
December 31,

2002 2001 . 2000 1999 1998
% of % of % of % of % of
{Dotiars in thousands) Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total
feal estate mortgage loans:
Permanent:
One-to-four family $ 7,905,585 306% $ 9317810 36.7%  $10,413,005 435%  $11,365,545 511%  $13.311,870 60.6%
Muftitamily 737,517 28 989,169 39 1,064,796 44 1,224,348 55 1,027,320 47
Commercial 1,027,681 40 1,076,483 42 769,589 32 624,517 28 663,448 3.0
Total permanent 9,670,783 374 11,383,472 448 12,247,390 51.1 13,214,410 59.4 15,002,638 68.3
Construction:
One-to-four family 718,062 28 666,982 28 611,317 28 486,512 22 453,762 2.1
Multifamily 377.488 1.4 359,848 14 90,129 4 75,171 3 45,064 2
Commercial 378,466 15 313,725 1.3 163,544 6 92,993 4 73,641 3
Total construction 1,475,017 5.7 1,340,555 5.3 864,990 36 654,676 2.8 572,467 26
Total real estate mortgage foans 11,145,800 43.1 12,724,627 50.1 13,112,380 54.7 13,869,088 62.3 15,575,105 70.9
Retail consumer Ioans 5,441,269 210 4,808,390 189 4,583,770 19.1 3,745,633 16.8 2,841,225 129
Automabile loans 5,394,764 20.9 4,244,070 16.7 3,046,038 127 2,413,531 10.8 2,011,968 92
Consumer finance loans 971,335 38 1,027,382 4.0 974,852 4.1 700,259 32 443,301 20
Leases 2,133,468 82 1,994,524 79 1,778,021 14 1,137,895 5.1 734152 33
Corporate banking loans 1,314,781 5.1 1,043,714 4.1 802,379 34 679,397 30 575,042 28
Total loans and leases
held for investment 26,401 417 1021 25842117 1017 24,297.440 1014 22,545,801 1012 22,180,793 100.9
Less:
Loans in process 469,484 18 387,264 15 345,341 14 259,680 1.2 183,277 8
Unamortized net discounts (premiums) 2548 - 20,527 ~ {6,763} - (7,430} - {14,282) (N
Allowance for loan and lease losses 328,017 12 255,478 1.0 189,616 B 186,400 8 184,989 8
Net deferred loan costs {84,285) (3 (86,007) (.3) (83,388) (4) {91,133} {4) (66,927) {.3)
Automobile dealer reserve (167,291 {.6) (131,216) (.5) {97,538) (4 (78,578) (4 (65,214) (3)
Total net items 548,571 2.1 446,046 1.7 347,268 1.4 268,939 1.2 201,843 3
Loans and feases held for
investment, net $25,852,846 100.0%  $25396,071  100.0%  $23950,172  100.0%  $22,276,862 100.0%  $21,978,950 100.0%
Loans held for sale $ 351,892 § 332629 $ 58002 § 35988 § 240,461
Loan servicing portfolio $16,893,609 $13.846,807 $10,379,644 $10,798,563 $9,916,922
As of December 31, 2002, there was no concentration of loans or Priricipa Payments Contractually
Due in the Year(s) Ended December 31,
leases in any type of industry which exceeded 10% of the Bank’s 2008 and o
total loans and leases that is not included as a loan or lease catego-  (llars in thousands) 2003 2004-2007 Thereatter Total
Ty in the table above. Construction loans § 765246  $168276 § 8648 § 942170
The following table refiects the principal payments con-  Corporate banking loans 301,872 608957 403834 1,314,783
tractually due (assuming no prepayments) on the Bank’s construc- Totall1} $1.067.118  $777.233  S412582  $2.256.933

tion portfolio, net of loans in process, and corporate banking loan
. (1) Of the S1.2 billion of loans due after December 31, 2003, 39% are fixed rate and 61% are adjustable
portfolio at December 31, 2002. Management expects prepayments rate.

will cause actual maturities to be shorter.
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The Company normally has outstanding a number of commitments
to extend credit. At December 31, 2002, there were outstanding com-
mitments to originate $2.2 billion of mortgage loans and other
loans and leases, all at market rates. Terms of the commitments
extend up to nine months, but are generally less than two months.

At December 31, 2002, there were also outstanding
unfunded consumer lines of credit of $4.4 billion and corporate
banking lines of credit of $428.5 million. Substantially all of the
consumer loans, including consumer lines of credit, are secured by
equity in the borrowers’ residences. The Company does not expect
all of these lines to be used by the borrowers. Outstanding letters of
credit totaled $85.5 million as of December 31, 2002.

The Bank is engaged in equipment leasing through a sub-
sidiary, ICX Corporation (“ICX”). The equipment leased by ICX is for
commercial and industrial use only, with primary lease concentra-
tions to Fortune 1000 companies for large capital equipment acqui-
sitions. A lessee is evaluated from a credit perspective using the
same underwriting standards and procedures as for a borrower. A
lessee is expected to be able to make the rental payments based on
its business’ cash flow and the strength of its balance sheet. Leases
are usually not evaluated as collateral-based transactions and,
therefore, the lessee’s overall financial strength is the most impor-
tant credit evaluation factor.

A summary of the investment in leases, before the

allowance for lease losses, is as follows:

December 31,
(Daltars in thousands) 2002 2001
Direct financing leases $1,347,510 $1,277,978
Sales-type leases 47,633 49,793
Leveraged leases 738,325 666,752
Total lease financings $2,133.468 $1,994,524

The components of the investment in lease financings,
before the allowance for lease losses, are as follows:

December 31,

{Dallars in thousands} 2002 2001

Total future minimum lease rertals $1,435,427 $1,512,225

Estimated residual value of Isased equipment 1,319,049 1,076,772

Initial direct costs 11,932 11,397
Less unearned income on minimum lease rentals

and estimated residual value of leased equipment 632,936 505,870

Total lease financings $2,133,458 $1,994,524

At December 31, 2002, future minimum lease rentals on
direct financing, sales-type and leveraged leases are as follows:
$270.1 million in 2003; $234.0 million in 2004; $196.5 million in
2005; S147.4 million in 2006; $111.8 million in 2007; and $475.6
million thereafter.

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN AND LEASE LOSSES
Changes in the allowance for loan and lease losses are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

{Doflass in thausands] 2002 2001 2000
Balance, beginning of year §255,478 $189,616 $186,400
Provision 192,003 100,786 54,205
Acquired through business combination 3,184 33,782 -
Charge-offs (145,034) (78,459) (60,331)
Recoveries 22,448 9,773 9,342
Balance, end of year $328,017 $255,478 $183,6816

The total investment in impaired loans was $20.3 million and $12.3
million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. These loans
were subject to allowances for loan and lease losses of $3.8 million
at December 31, 2002 and 2001.

The average recorded investment in impaired loans was
$25.1 million, S10.9 million, and $21.3 million for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Interest income
recognized was $1.0 million, $.7 million and $.6 million for the
years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The
interest income potential based upon the original terms of the con-
tracts for these impaired loans was $2.3 million, $1.0 million, and
$2.1 million for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

NoTe 7. LOAN SERVICING ASSETS
Activity in loan servicing assets is summarized as follows:

December 31,
{Dallars in thausands) 2002 2001
Balance, beginning of year $139,840 $121,735
Amount capitalized 100,430 61,897
Amortization (30,151) {19,178)
Impairment charges {4,500) -
Net change in valuation alfowance {77.055) (24,614)
Balance, end of year $128,564 $139,840

Loans serviced for others were $16.9 billion and $13.8 billion at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. At December 31, 2002
and 2001, the fair value of loan servicing assets approximated their
respective book value.

The Bank securitized residential mortgage and consumer
loans of $6.7 billion in both 2002 and 2001, respectively, in which
the Bank retained servicing. The residential mortgage and con-
sumer loans were exchanged for government agency mortgage-
backed securities. The Bank did not retain any credit enhancing
residual interests, nor is the Bank subject to any significant
recourse obligations. The Company does not hold any interests in or
sponsor any special-purpose entities.




NoTe 8. DEPOSITS
Deposits consist of the following:

December 31,
{Dottars in thousands] 2002 2001 2000
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Amaunt Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
Checking accounts:
Interest-bearing ~ § 7,460,530  1.80% $5973545  2.45% $2,547,726 2.68%

Noninterest-
bearing
Maoney market
and savings

2,189,903 - 1,855,481 - 1394185 -

accounts 8157534 151 6737160 226 5486158 3.30

Certificates

of deposit 9718876 361 10556123 443 10177801 599

Total deposits,

net $27527,843 221 $25123309 305 19605671 4.38

Including the
effect of interest

rate swaps 2.06% 2.88% 4.35%

A summary of all certificates of deposit by maturity follows:

{Dallars in thousands) December 31, 2002

noTe g. FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES

Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) advances at December 31, 2002
are secured by the Company’s investment in the stock of the FHLB,
as well as $11.0 billion in certain real estate loans and $3.1 billion
in mortgage-backed securities. FHLB advances are comprised of
the following:

December 31,
{Dollars in thousands) 2002 2001
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Amount Rate Amount Rate
Fixed rate advances $8,619,560 437%  $8,218,827 5.19%
Variable rate advances 408,605 1.23 424477 175

Total advances 9,023,165 423
Plus amortized premium on advances 8,760 -

8,643,304 5.02
13.934 ~

Total advances, net $9,037,925 4.18 $8,657,238 495

Including the effect of interest

rate swaps 4.26% 5.02%

Scheduled repayments of FHLB advances are as follows:

December 31, 2002
Variable Rate Advances

{Dollars in thousands} Fixed Rate Advances

T Weighted Weighted
Within 12 months $5,530,794 Average Average
QOver 12 months to 36 months 2,284,767 Amount Rate Amoumt__ Fate
Qver 36 months 1,924,315 Maturing in:

Total $9,719,876 2003 $2,595,000 1.34% $ - ~%
2004 125,000 5.64 - -
A summary of certificates of deposit with balances of $100,000 or 2005 2,265,200 6.23 _ _
more by maturity follows: 2006 500,088 498 - -
{Dollars in thousands) December 31, 2002 2007 2.017.095 549 173743 122
Three months or less § 235,043 Thereafter 1.0M7477 520 235,862 1.24
QOver three months to six months 335,457
Over six months to twelve manths 559,353 Total advances, net $8,613,560 4.37% $409,605 1.23%
Over twelve months 875,751
Total $2005,614 At December 31, 2002, certain fixed rate agreements are convert-

Investment securities and mortgage-backed securities with a par
value of $48g.0 million, $573.0 million and $594.6 million at
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, are pledged to
secure public deposits and for other purposes required or permit-
ted by law.

ible to LIBOR at the counterparty’s option beginning in 2003. If
the counterparty exercises its option, the Company can prepay the
advance in full or part on the effective conversion date or on the

quarterly repricing date.

Note 10. FEDERAL FUNDS PURCHASED AND REPURCHASE
AGREEMENTS
Federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements consist of

the following:

Oecember 31,
{Dollars in thousands) 2002 2001
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Amaunt Rate Amount Rate
Due within 30 days $283,912 1.33% $203,259 1.687%
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noTE1l. OTHER BORROWINGS
Other borrowings consist of the following:

December 31,
{Daflars in thousands) 2002 2001
Subordinated notes, due May 2012,
interest payable semi-annuaily at 6.375%
{net of unamertized discount of
$2.0 million in 2002} $398,010 by -
Senior notes, due February 15, 2004,
interest payable at 7.125% (net of
unamartized discaunt of $.3 million in
2002 and $.6 million in 2001 94,782 94,524
Zero coupon bonds of $151 million at
December 31, 2002 and 2007, due
February 2005, with yigld to maturity
of 11.37% 118,767 108,162
Installment obligations without recourse 80,308 85,482
Variable-rate bonds, due Decemnber 1, 2015,
interest payable semi-annually at 4.75%
with 2 ceiting of 9.50% 10,000 10,000
" Other 5,986 8,242
Total $708,853 $304.410

The zero coupon bonds are collateralized by mortgage-backed
securities with a par value of $229.2 million and $202.3 million at
December 31, 2002 anc 2001, respectively.

On May 20, 2002, Charter One Bank issued $400.0 mil-
lion of 6.375% subordinated notes due May 15, 2012. Interest on
the subordinated notes is payable semiannually. The subordinated
notes are subordinated to the claims of depositors and other cred-
itors of Charter One Bank, except liabilities which by their terms
rank equally with or are subordinate to the subordinated notes.
Each subordinated note is Charter One Bank’s direct, uncondi-
tional and unsecured general obligation. The net proceeds from
the subordinated notes were used by the Bank for general corpo-
rate purposes.

note12. INTEREST RATE SWAPS

The Company uses interest rate swaps as one of the tools to man-
age its interest rate risk profile (defined as the sensitivity of our
earnings and economic value to changes in interest rates). The
Company utilizes fixed receipt callable interest rate swaps to con-
vert certain longer-terra callable certificates of deposit into short-
term and medium-term variable instruments. Under certain of
these agreements, Charter One has agreed to receive interest from
the counterparty on a notional amount at a fixed rate defined in
the agreement and to pay interest at a floating rate indexed to
LIBOR during the entire term of the interest rate swap. In other
agreements, Charter One has agreed to receive interest from the
counterparty on a notional amount at a fixed rate defined in the

agreement, and to pay interest at a fixed rate, converting to float-
ing rate indexed to LIBOR after the first two years of the interest
rate swap term. Such interest rate swaps are designated and qual-
ify as fair value hedges under SFAS No. 133. The Company has
assumed no ineffectiveness in the respective hedging relation-
ships. Any gain or loss on the interest rate swap was offset by a
gain or loss on the certificates of deposit during the period of
change in fair values.

The Company utilizes fixed payment interest rate swaps
to convert certain floating-rate FHLB advances into fixed-rate
instruments. Under these agreements, Charter One has agreed to
pay interest to the counterparty on a notional principal amount
at a fixed rate defined in the agreement and receive interest at a
floating rate indexed to LIBOR. The amounts of interest
exchanged are calculated on the basis of notional principal
amounts. Such interest rate swaps are designated and qualify as
cash flow hedges under SFAS No. 133. We have assumed no inef-
fectiveness in the respective hedging relationships. Any gain or
loss on the interest rate swaps was offset by the expected future
cash flows on the FHLB advances during the period of change in
fair values.

The Company utilized a fixed receipt interest rate swap
to convert our $400.0 million of subordinated notes into a vari-
able instrument. Under this agreement, Charter One has agreed
to receive interest from the counterparty on a notional amount at
a fixed rate defined in the agreement and to pay interest at a
floating rate indexed to LIBOR. Such interest rate swap is desig-
nated and qualifies as a fair value hedge under SFAS No. 133. The
Company assumed no ineffectiveness in the hedging relation-
ship. Any gain or loss on the interest rate swap was offset by a
gain or loss on the subordinated notes during the period of
change in fair values.

Additionally, on May 20, 2002, the Company entered
into $575.0 million of fixed payment and variable receipt interest
rate swaps related to the issuance of the subordinated notes dis-
cussed above. However, these interest rate swaps did not qualify
for hedge accounting under SFAS No. 133. For the year ended
December 31, 2002, the net unrealized loss of $25.9 million attrib-
uted to these interest rate swaps was recognized in the
Company’s Consolidated Statement of Income under the caption
“net gains.” The corresponding interest rate swap liabilities were
recognized in the Company’'s Consolidated Statement of
Financial Condition at December 31, 2002 under the caption
“accrued expenses and other liabilities.”




Information on the interest rate swaps, by maturity date, is as

follows:
December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2002 2001
Receiving Paying Receiving Paying
Notional  interest Interest Notional  Interest  interest
Amount Rate Rate Amount Rate Rate
Fixed Payment
and Fixed
Receipt (1)
2007 $1,005,000 431% 275% § - % %
Fixed Payment
and Variable
Receipt
2002 $ - ~% % $ 25000 373% 6.44%
2003 409,605 1.42 355 409,605 1.94 3.55
2004 375,000 1.40 3.66 - - -
2006 200,000 1.40 469 - - -
Total $ 984,605 1.41%(2) 382% $ 434605  2.04%(2) 371%
Variable Payment
and Fixed Receipt
2003 b - -% % $§ 255,000 408%  2.14%
2004 315,000 2.80 1.57 - - -
2006 - - - 930,000 5.80 212
2007 555,000 5.51 1.55 10,000 7.25 2.36
2010 - - - 10000 740 2.06
2011 - - - 45000 633 1.94
2012 400,000 5.76 1.75 - - -
Total $1.270,000 492%  1.62%(2) $1,250,000 543%  2.12%(2)

(1) Converts to variable payment indexed to LIBOR after the first two years of the interest rate swap
agreement.

(2) Rates are based on LIBOR.

The fair value of the Company’s interest rate swap contracts is
estimated as the difference in the present value of future cash
flows between the Company's existing agreements and current
market rate agreements of the same duration. Information on the
fair values of the interest rate swaps is as follows:

December 31,
{Dollars in thousands) 2002 2001

Unrealized gain {loss):

Fair value hedges $ 84,341 $23.376
Cash flow hedges (7.043) {3.584)
Unhedged interest rate swaps (25,905) -

Total fair value $51.393 $19,792

THE CHARTER ONE FINANCIAL, INC. ANNUAL REPORT |

The net benefit of interest rate swaps included in interest expense

is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

(Doltars in thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Interest {incame) expense:

Deposits $(44,792) $(21,774) $(8.879)

FHLB advances 7317 1,241 -

Subordinated notes (9,792 - -

Unhedged interest rate swaps 7,903 - -

Total $(39,364) $(20,533) $(8,879)

The Company is exposed to credit loss in the event of nonperfor-
mance by the swap counterparties; however, the Company does

not currently anticipate nonperformance by the counterparties.

NoTeE13. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes consists of the following

components:
Year Ended December 31,
{Dollars in thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Current $111,810 $ 45,396 $ 33483
Deferred 156,923 186,502 170,321
Total $268,733 $232,898 $203,784

A reconciliation from tax at the statutory rate to the income tax

provision is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000
Amount  Rate Amount  Rate

{Dollars in thousands} Amount  Rate

Tax at statutory rate $296,240 35.0% $257,057 35.0% $223,211 35.0%

Decrease due to:

Bank owned life insurance (12,878} (1.5) (13.615) (1.9 (13,429) (2.1)
General business credits {5,000) {6 (3,443) (5) (2,500} (.4)
EISOP dividends (4,333) (5) {440) (1) {440) (1)
Other (5,296} {6} {6.661) (8] {3.058} (4)

Income tax provision $268,733 31.8% $232,898 31.7% $203,784 32.0%
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Significant components of the deferred tax assets and liabilities

are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
{Doftars in thousands) 2002 2001 2000

Deferred tax assets:

Book aliowance for loan losses $108,561 $ 84,466 $ 62,581
Accrued and deferred compensation 3010 1936 3,267
Alternative minimum tax credit - 47,638 53,728
Other 2,088 27,886 53,170
Total deferred tax assets 113,859 161,926 172,748
Deferred tax liabilities:

Leasing activities, net 663,145 557,246 386,053
FHLB stack dividend 68,824 58,018 45,307
Deferred loan costs 29,533 28,731 29,136
Tax allowance for loan losses 932 2,285 3,640
Net unrealized gain on securities 78,528 20,586 12.825
Other n 10,098 44,346
Total deferred tax liabilities 841,333 576,965 521,307
Net deferred tax liability $(727,674) $(515,039) $(348,561)

In 2002 and 2001, Charter One recaptured excess bad debt
reserves of $4.0 million and $3.8 million, respectively, resulting in
payments of $1.4 million and $1.3 million which were previously
accrued. The pre-1988 reserve provisions are subject only to recap-
ture requirements in the case of certain excess distributions to,
and redemptions of, shareholders or if the Bank no longer quali-
fies as a “bank.” Tax bad debt deductions accumulated prior to
1988 by the Bank are approximately $321.3 million. No deferred
income taxes have been provided on these bad debt deductions
and no recapture of these amounts is anticipated.

NoTE 14. REGULATORY MATTERS

Federal Reserve Board (“FRB”) regulations require depository
institutions to maintain certain minimum reserve balances.
These reserves, which consisted of vault cash and deposits at the
Federal Reserve Bank, totaled $56.1 million and $78.5 million at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The Bank may not declare or pay cash dividends on its
shares of common stock if the payment would cause shareholders’
equity to be reduced below applicable regulatory capital mainte-
nance requirements, or if such declaration and payment would
otherwise violate regulatory requirements. At December 31, 2002,
approximately $463.7 million of the Company’s retained earnings
was available to pay dividends to shareholders or to be used for
other corporate purposes.

As a financial holding company, Charter One is subject
to regulation by the FRB under the Bank Holding Company Act of
1956 as amended, and the regulations of the FRB, including

various capital requirements. The Bank is subject to various regu-
latory capital requirements administered by the OCC. Failure to
meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain manda-
tory, and possibly discretionary, actions by each regulator that, if
undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company's
Consolidated Financial Statements. Under capital adequacy guide-
lines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action,
specific capital guidelines must be met that involve quantitative
measures of assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items
as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The institu-
tion’s capital classification is also subject to qualitative judg-
ments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and
other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to
ensure capital adequacy require Charter One and the Bank to indi-
vidually maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the
table below) of total and Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets, and
Tier 1 capital to average assets. The actual regulatory capital
ratios calculated for Charter One and Charter One Bank, N.A.,
along with the capital amounts and ratios for capital adequacy
purposes and the amounts required to be categorized as well capi-
talized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective

action are as follows:

December 31, 2002

To Be “Well Capitalized”
Under Prompt Corrective
Action Provisions

For Capital
Actual Adequacy Purposes

{Dollars in thousands} Amount  Ratio Amount  Ratio Amount Ratio

Charter One:
Total capital to
risk-weighted
assets $3,239,604 1167% $2,220,734 28.00% $2,775917 210.00%
Tier 1 capital to
risk-weighted
assets
Tier 1 capital to

average assets

2,513,577 9.05 1,110,367 24.00 1,665,550 >6.00

2,513,577 6.10 1,648,851 >4.00 N/A - N/A
Charter One Bank {1)(2):

Total capital to
risk-weighted
assets

Tier 1 capital to
risk-weighted
assets

Tier 1 capital to
average assets

3,150,686 11.36 2,219,719 >8.00 2,774,843 210.00

2091615 754 1,108,880 24.00 1,664,789 >6.00

2,091,615 511 1,636,187 24.00 2,045234 2500




December 31, 2001

To Be "Weli Capitalized”
Under Prompt Carrective
Action Provisions

For Capital
Actual Adequacy Purposes

{Dolfars in thousands} Amount  Ratio Amgunt  Ratio Amount Ratio

Charter One:
Total capital to
risk-weighted

assets $2,773,390 10.23% $2,168,434 28.00% $2,710,542 =210.00%
Tier 1 capital to

risk-weighted

assets 2517875 929 1,084,217 24.00 1,626,325 =6.00

Tier 1 capital to

average assets 2517875 6.81 1,479,451 >4.00 1,849,313 25,00
Charter One Commercial {1);

Total capital to
risk-weighted
assets

Tier 1 capital to
risk-weighted
assets

Tier 1 capital to

average assets

39729 48.21 6,877 28.00 8,597 >10.00

34,729 46.21 3,439 24.00 5158 >6.00

39,729 13.72 11579 >24.00 14,474 2500
Charter One Bank (2):
Total capital to
risk-weighted
assets
Tier 1 capital to

risk-weighted

2,658,877 10.01 2,125,856 28.00 2,857,320 210.00

assets 1,910,830 7.1 N/A - N/A 1,594,332 25.00
Core capital to

adjusted tangible

assets 1,932,552 5.12 1,509,358 >4.00 1,886,698 =5.00

Tangible capital to

tangible assets 1,932,552 512 566,009 >1.50 N/A  N/A

(1) On May 16, 2002, Charter One Commercial merged into Charter One Bank. At December 31, 2001,
Charter One Commercial was subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the
FDIC.

{2) On May 7. 2002, Charter One Bank converted from a thrift to a national bank. At December 331, 2001,
Charter One Bank was subject 1o various regulatory capital requirements administered by the Office
of Thrift Supervision.

Management believes that, as of December 31, 2002,
Charter One and Charter One Bank, individually met the capital
adequacy requirements to which they were subject. Events beyond
management’s control, such as fluctuations in interest rates or a
downturn in the economy in areas in which the institution’s loans
and securities are concentrated could adversely affect future earn-
ings and, consequently, the institution’s ability to meet its future
capital requirements.
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NoTE15. STOCK PURCHASE RIGHTS
Under the Amended and Restated Stockholder Protection Rights
Agreement, each share of the Company’s common stock outstand-
ing entitles the shareholder to one stock purchase right. Each
right will entitle its holder to purchase one one-hundredth of a
share of a new series of preferred stock (Series A Preferred Stock),
at a price of $100.00 (subject to adjustment) (the “Exercise Price”)
and will generally become exercisable if any person or group (1)
acquires 20% or more of the Company’s common stock or (2) com-
mences a tender or exchange offer to acquire 20% or more of the
Company’s common stock. Upon announcement that any person
or group has acquired 20% or more of the Company’s common
stock (“Acquiring Person”), rights owned by the Acquiring Person
will become void and each other right will “flip-in,” entitling its
holder to purchase for the Exercise Price either Series A Preferred
Stock or, at the option of the Company, common stock, having a
market value of twice the Exercise Price. In addition, after any per-
son has become an Acquiring Person, the Company may not con-
solidate or merge with any person or sell 50% or more of its assets
or earning power to any person if at the time of such merger or
sale the Acquiring Person controls the Company’s Board of
Directors and, in the case of a merger, will receive different treat-
ment than the other shareholders, unless provision is made such
that each right would thereafter entitle its holder to buy, for the
Exercise Price, the number of shares of common stock of such
other person having a market value of twice the Exercise Price.
The rights may be redeemed by the Company for $.01 per
right at any time prior to an acquisition of 20% or more of the com-
mon stock of the Company. The rights will expire on October 20,
2009 or before that date under certain circumstances, including
in connection with the acquisition of the Company in a merger
before any person has acquired more than 20% of the Company’s
common stock.

NoTE16. STOCK OPTION PLANS

At December 31, 2002, the Company has several stock option plans
under which 16.1 million shares of common stock are reserved for
grant to officers, key employees and directors. All of the
Company’s plans have been approved by the Company’s sharehold-
ers. The date on which the options are first exercisable is deter-
mined by the Stock Option Committee of the Board of Directors
(the “Committee”). The options expire no later than 10 years from
the grant date.
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The following is an analysis of the stock option activity for each of
the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2002 and
the stock options outstanding at the end of the respective periods.
Amounts have been restated to reflect all prior stock dividends.

Weighted Average

Number of Exercise Price of
Option Shares Option Shares
Outstanding at January 1, 20C0 20,744 971 $15.23
Granted 4,402,921 16.49
Exercised {2,358,796) 10.28
Forfeited (848,342) 19.85
Outstanding at December 31, 2000 21,940,754 15.84
Granted 8,182,394 2471
Acquired through acquisition 1,086,212 16.70
Exercised (3,082,959) 11.29
Forfeited (634,713) 19.39
Outstanding at December 31, 2001 27,491,688 18.94
Granted 4,643,260 28.72
Exercised {3,208,736) 13.27
Forfeited (357,655) 2281
Outstanding at December 31, 2002 28,570,557 $21.12
Available for future issuance et December 31,2002 16,064,928

Financial data pertaining to outstanding stock options were as

follows:
December 31, 2002

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Average Number of  Exercise Price
Ranges of Number of Remaining  Exercise Price of Exercisable  of Exercisable
Exercise Pricas Option Shares Years QOption Shares  (ption Shares  Option Shares
$ 486- §959 1,012,756 1.2 $ 699 1012756 $ 6.99
10.28 - 148! 3,253,428 31 10.75 3,253,428 10.75
15.24 - 19.92 5,541,982 6.3 16.60 1,882,994 17.08
2002- 2341 6,115,923 58 2248 5,983,623 22.49
2401- 2499 3,996,332 8.0 24.05 134,681 2427
2520- 2581 3.927,715 8.9 25.34 159,135 2552
2601 - 3354 4722 421 38 28.86 98,780 28.21
28,570,557 6.8 $21.12 12,525,397 $17.46

The Committee may also award restricted shares of common stock
to officers and key employees. The terms of the grants are deter-
mined by the Committee at the date of the award. As of December
31,2002, no awards of restricted shares of common stock had been

made.

NoTe 17. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The estimated fair values of financial instruments have been
determined by the Company using available market information
and appropriate valuation methodologies. Considerable judgment
is required in interpreting market data to develop the estimates of
fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not
necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Company could
realize in a current market exchange. The use of different market
assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a materi-
al effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, Accrued Interest Receivable and
Payable and Advance Payments by Borrowers for Taxes and
Insurance-The carrying amount as reported in the Consolidated
Statements of Financial Condition is a reasonable estimate of fair
value.

Mortgage-Backed and Investment Securities- Fair val-
ues are based on quoted market prices, dealer quotes and prices
obtained from independent pricing services.

Loans and Leases-At December 31, 2002, the fair value
of loans and leases, other than one-to-four family loans, is esti-
mated by discounting the future cash flows using the LIBOR swap
curve. The fair value of one-to-four family loans is estimated by
discounting the future cash flows using current market rates for
loans of similar maturities, along with the LIBOR swap curve. At
December 31, 2001, the fair value was estimated by discounting
the future cash flows using the current market rates for loans and
leases of similar maturities with adjustments for market and cred-
it risks.

FHLB and Federal Reserve Bank Stock - The fair value is
estimated to be the carrying value which is par. All transactions in
the capital stock of the FHLB and Federal Reserve Bank are
executed at par.

Deposits - At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the fair value
of demand deposits, savings accounts and money market deposit
accounts is the amount payable on demand at the reporting date.
At December 31, 2002, the fair value of fixed-maturity certificates
of deposit is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using
the LIBOR swap curve. At December 31, 2001, the fair value of
fixed-maturity certificates of deposit was estimated using rates
currently offered for advances of similar remaining maturities.

FHLB Federal Funds
Repurchase Agreements and Other Borrowings-~At December 31,

Advances, Purchased and
2002, the fair value of convertible FHLB advances is provided by
the FHLB. The fair value of federal funds purchased and repur-
chase agreements and other borrowings is estimated by discount-
ing the future cash flows using the LIBOR swap curve. At
December 31, 2001, rates available to the Bank for borrowings with
similar terms and remaining maturities were used to estimate the

fair value of existing borrowings.
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Forward Commitments-Quoted market prices are utilized to NoTE 18. PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
determine fair value disclosures when such prices are available. The summarized financial statements of Charter One (parent com-
The fair value estimates presented herein are based pany only) as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 and for the three
on pertinent information available to management as of years ended December 31, 2002 are as follows:
December 31, 2002 and 2001. Although management is not aware
of any factors that would significantly affect the estimated fair STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
value amounts, such amounts have not been comprehensively December 31,
revalued for purposes of these financial statements since that (Datlars in thousands 2002 2001
date and, therefore, current estimates of fair value may differ Assets:
significantly from the amounts presented herein. Deposits with subsidiaries $ 29484 $ 55043
Cash equivalents 4,295 138
December 31, 2002 Becember 31. 2001 Investments in and receivables due
‘ Carrying Fair Carrying Fair from subsidiaries 3,139,533 2,401,473
{Dollars in thousands) Value Value Value Value Securities and other assets 12527 570,318
Assets:
Cash and cash Total assets $3,185,839 $3.026.972
egquivalents $ 447213 § 447213 § 916520 § 516520 Liabilities:
Investment securities 214,068 214,371 135,586 135,778 Other borrowings S 94781 $ 94524
Mortgage-backed securities 12,077,389 12,101,680  9,014416 9,053,170 Accrued expenses and other liabilities 7,233 3948
Loans and leases, net 26,204,738 27587274 25,728,700 26,102,123
FHLB and Federal Reserve Total liabilities 102,014 98,472
Bank stock 681,923 681,923 617,836 617,836 Shareholders' Equity:
Accrued interest receivable 154,952 154,962 162,065 162,065 Common stock and additional paid-in capital 2,195,371 2,084,016
Liabilities: Retained earnings 824,564 811,093
Deposits: Treasury stock, at cost (82,510} (14.586)
Checking, money market Accumulated other comprehensive income 145,500 37,977
and savings accounts 17,807,967 17,807,867 14,567,186 14,567,186
Certificates of deposit 9719876  9,007.256 10556123 10,695580 Total shareholders” equity 3083825 298,500
PHLB advances 9037.925 9658562 8657238 9017975 Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $3185838  $3026972
Federal funds purchased and
repurchase agreements 283912 283,912 203,259 203,259 STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Other borrowings 708,853 826,665 304,410 323,957
Advance payments by Yzar Ended December 31,
borrowers for taxes {Dollars in thousands) 2002 2001 2000
and insurance 23,595 23,595 54,103 54,103 Income:
Accrued interest payable 8372 B/I2 57704 57704 Dividends from subsidiaries $625,000 $407300  $1,022.400
Off-Balance-Sheet Items: Interest and dividends on securities 20,148 39,382 17814
Forward commitments to Other income 1,467 1,064 1,238
purchase/sell/originate loans )
or mortgage-backed securities 2,855 4,397 Total incame 646,615 447.746 1,041,552
Expenses:
Interest expense 7,034 7,015 7,022
Administrative expenses 6,568 6,566 5,663
Total expenses 13,602 13,581 12,685
Income before undistributed
income of subsidiaries 633,013 434,165 1,028,867
Equity in undistributed
income {losses) of subsidiaries (65,345) 66,549 {594,905)
Net income $577,668 $500,714 § 433982
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,
{Dollars in thousands) 2002 2001 2000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Net income $ 577,668 $500,714 $ 433,962
Adjustments to reconcile net
income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Equity in undistributed
(earnings) losses of subsidiaries 55,345 (66,549) 594,905
Other (701,989) (470,851) (704,580
Net cash provided by {used in}
operating activities (68,976) (36,686) 324,287
Cash Flows fram Investing Activities:
Payments for investments in
and advances to subsidiaries (332,732} (116,713) {553,800)
Repayment of investments in
and advances 1o subsidiaries 916,805 368,000 719,400
Purchases of securities (5,633} (1,000} -
Net cash provided by
investing activities 578,440 250,287 165,600
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of
comman stock 58,563 49,443 30,209
Payment of dividends on
comman stock {191,070) {167,052} (144,659
Net purchases of treasury stocic (398,365} (122,597} {293,763)
Net cash used in financing
activities (530,866} (240,208) (408,213
Increase {decrease) in deposits
with subsidiaries and cash
equivalents $ (21,402) $ (26.608) § 81674

~NoTE19. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On January 16, 2003, the Boards of Directors of the Company and
Advance Bancorp, Inc. announced a definitive agreement pursuant
to which the Company will acquire Advance Bancorp for $72 mil-
lion in Charter One cornmon stock. Advance Bank, the principal
subsidiary of Advance Bancorp, is a state-chartered commercial
bank headquartered in Lansing, Illinois with approximately $632
million in assets, $491 million in deposits, and 14 branch offices
located in Cook County, [llinois. The merger, which will be account-
ed for as a purchase, is expected to close in the second or third
quarter of 2003. The transaction is subject to required bank regu-
latory approvals and approval by Advance Bancorp shareholders.

independent AUDITORS” REPORT

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors
Charter One Financial, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of
financial condition of Charter One Financial, Inc. and its sub-
sidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related consol-
idated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opin-
ion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial state-
ments are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant esti-
mates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits pro-
vide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Charter One Financial, Inc. and its subsidiaries as of December 31,
2002 and 2001, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2002 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Dol it Toul p1f

Cleveland, Ohio
January 17, 2003
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report of MANAGEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL PURSUANT
TO SECTION 36 OF THE FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE ACT

January 17, 2003

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Charter One Bank, N.A. (“the Bank”) is
responsible for the preparation, integrity, and fair presentation
of its published financial statements and all other information
presented in this annual report. The financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles gener-
ally accepted in the United States of America and, as such,
include amounts based on informed judgments, assumptions

and estimates made by management.

INTERNAL CONTROL

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting for financial
presentations in conformity with both accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and the
Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council
Instructions for Consolidated Reports of Condition and Income
(“Call Report instructions”). The internal control contains mon-
itoring mechanisms, and actions are taken to correct deficien-
cies identified.

There are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of
any internal control, including the possibility of human error
and the circumvention or overriding of controls. Accordingly,
even effective internal control can provide only reasonable
assurance with respect to financial statement preparation.
Further, because of changes in conditions, the effectiveness of
internal control may vary over time.

Management assessed the Bank’s internal control
over financial reporting for financial presentations in conform-
ity with both accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America and Call Report instructions as of
December 31, 2002. This assessment was based on criteria for
effective internal control over financial reporting described in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. Based on this assessment, management believes
that the Bank maintained effective internal control over finan-
cial reporting presented in conformity with both accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America

and Call Report instructions as of December 31, 2002.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is com-
prised entirely of outside directors who are independent of the
Bank’s management; it includes members with banking or
related management experience, has access to its own outside
counsel, and does not include any large customers of the Bank.
The Audit Committee is directly responsible for the appoint-
ment, compensation, and oversight of the independent auditors
for the purpose of preparing or issuing an audit report or relat-
ed work. It meets periodically with management, the independ-
ent auditors, and the internal auditors to ensure that they are
carrying out their responsibilities. The Audit Committee is also
responsible for performing an oversight role by reviewing and
monitoring the financial, accounting and auditing procedures
of the Bank in addition to reviewing the Bank’s financial
reports. The independent auditors and the internal auditors
have full and free access to the Audit Committee, with or with-
out the presence of management, to discuss the adequacy of
internal control over financial reporting and any other matters
which they believe should be brought to the attention of the
Audit Committee.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Management is also responsible for ensuring compliance with
the federal laws and regulations concerning loans to insiders
and the federal and state laws and regulations concerning divi-
dend restrictions, both of which are designated by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC") as safety and sound-
ness laws and regulations.

Management assessed its compliance with the desig-
nated safety and soundness laws and regulations and has main-
tained records of its determinations and assessments as
required by the FDIC. Based on this assessment, management
believes that the Bank has complied, in all material respects,
with the designated safety and soundness laws and regulations
for the year ended December 31, 2002.

ok, S A %

Charles John Koch Richard W. Neu
Chairman of the Board, Executive Vice President and
President and Chief Financial Officer

Chief Executive Officer
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independent AUDITORS REPORT PURSUANT

TO SECTION 36 OF THE FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE ACT

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors
Charter One Bank, N.A.
Cleveland, Ohio

We have examined management’s assertion, included in the
accompanying Report of Management on Internal Control
Pursuant to Section 36 of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, that
Charter One Bank, N.A. maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting for financial presentations in conformity with
both accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America and the Federal Financial Institutions Examination
Council Instructions for Consolidated Reports of Condition and
Income (“Call Report instructions”) as of December 31, 2002 based
on the criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (the “COSO report”). Management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over finan-
cial reporting. Our respansibility is to express an opinion on man-
agement’s assertion based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with
attestation standards established by the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included obtaining
an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
testing, and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
the internal contrel, and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
examination provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Because of inherent limitations in any internal control,
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projecticns of any evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal control may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assertion that Charter
One Bank, N.A. maintained effective internal control over finan-
cial reporting for financial presentations in conformity with both
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America and the Call Report instructions as of December 31, 2002
is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria estab-
lished in the COSO report.

ﬁgéo%‘éfé#%@/@ ALP

January 17, 2003
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form 10-K

This Annual Report includes the information required in our Form 10-k filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”). The integration of the two documents gives our shareholders and other interested parties timely, efficient and com-
prehensive information on our financial condition and results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2002. Portions
of this Annual Report are not required by the Form 10-X report and are not filed as part of the Company’s Form 10k filed with
the SEC. Only those portions of this Annual Report referenced in the cross reference index are incorporated in the Form 10-x

filed with the SEC. The report has not been approved or disapproved by the SEC, nor has the SEC passed upon its accuracy
or adequacy.

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-k
¥l ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TQ SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002
OR
[J TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission file number 001-15495

CHARTER ONE FINANCIAL, INC.

(€xact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 34-1567092
(State or other juriadiction of incorporation or organization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
1215 Superior Avenue, Cleveland, Chio 44114
(Addreas of principal executive offices) {Zip Code)

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code):(216) 566-5300
Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Common Stock ($o.01 par value), including
related preferred stock purchase rights New York Stock Exchange
(Title of Each Class) {Name of Each Exchange on which Registered)

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
None
(Title of Claas)

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required
to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 9o days. Yesl/ No [

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the best of Registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incor-
porated by reference in Part 111 of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-k. O

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yesl/ No [
As of June 30, 2002, the aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates, computed
by reference to the closing sale price of $32.74 per common share as of that date, was $7,570,169,949.

The number of shares outstanding of the Registrant’s sole class of common stock as of February 21, 2003 was
225,079,463,

Portions of the Registrant’s proxy statement for the April 22, 2003 Annual Meeting of Shareholders are incorporated
by reference in Part I11.
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Form 10-K Cross Reference Index

1. Business 59-60
2. Properties 60-61
3. Legal Proceedings 61
4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders - Not Applicable
PART 11

5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Shareholder Matters 30
6. Selected Financial Data 16-17
7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 18-32
7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk 28-29
8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 33-56

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures —
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PART 111

10.  Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant - Note (1)

11. Executive Compensation - Note (1)

12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related

Shareholder Matters - Note (1)(2)

13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions - Note (1)

14.  Controls and Procedures 61
PART 1V

15.  Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K 33-58

Signatures 61

Certifications of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 62-63

Exhibits - The index of exhibits has been filed as separate pages of the 2002 Form 10-x and is available to shareholders on request from

the Registrant’s Investor Relations Department. Copies of the exhibits may be obtained at a cost of 30 cents per page.

Financial Statement Schedules - All financial statement schedules are omitted because the required information is not applicable or is

included in the Consolidated Financial Statements or related notes.

Reports on Form 8-K - On October 8, 2002, the Registrant filed a report on Form 8-K containing a press release announcing earnings

expectations for the third quarter of 2002.

Note (1): Incorporated by reference from the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for the April 22, 2003 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. None of

the foregoing incorporation by reference shall include the information referred to in [tem 306 or Item 402(a)(8) of Regulation S-K.

Note (2): See Note 16 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for information relating to the Company’s equity compensation

plans.




1Tem 1. BUSINESS

Headquartered in Cleveland, Ohio, Charter One Financial, Inc.,
hereafter referred to as “Charter One” or the “Company,” is a finan-
cial holding company. Charter One’s principal line of business is
consumer banking which is primarily conducted through the oper-
ations of Charter One Bank, N.A. and its subsidiaries. The execu-
tive offices of Charter One are located at 1215 Superior Avenue,
Cleveland, Ohio 44114, and the telephone number is {216)
566-5300. See “Selected Financial Data” under Part II, Item 6,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations” under Part I, Item 7 and Note 1 to the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements under Part If, Item 8
of this Form 10-k for additional information relating to Charter
One’s business.

Charter One has a long history of completing mergers
and acquisitions, which have had a significant effect on its busi-
ness. See Note 3 and 19 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements under Part I, Item 8 of this Form 10-x for a discussion
of the impact of recent business combinations and branch acqui-
sitions.

Our reports, proxy statements and other information we
file with the SEC, as well our news releases, Corporate Governance
Guidelines, Corporate Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, Audit
Committee Charter, Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee
Charter and Compensation Committee Charter, are available free
of charge through our Internet site at http://www.charterone.com.
This information can be found on the Investor Relations page of
our Internet site. Qur annual report on Form 10K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amend-
ments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a)
of the Exchange Act are available as soon as reasonably practica-
ble after they have been filed with the SEC. Reference to our
Internet address is not intended to incorporate any of the informa-
tion contained on our Internet site into this document.

MARKET AREA AND COMPETITION

As of December 31, 2002, Charter One was ranked the 21st largest
bank holding company in the country and operated through
numerous banking offices: 112 in Ohio, 104 in Michigan, 128 in
New York, 81 in Illinois, 26 in Vermont and 10 in Massachusetts.
The branch locations operate under the Charter One Bank name in
all areas.

Based on 2002 data from SNL Datasource, the counties
served by the Bank include approximately 36% of the population
of Ohio, 54% of Michigan, 52% of New York (excluding New York
City), 65% of 1llinois, 80% of Vermont and 10% of Massachusetts.

The consumer banking business is highly competitive.
Charter One competes actively in all aspects and areas of its busi-
ness with consumer and commercial banks, savings and loans,
mortgage bankers and other financial service entities. Charter
One also competes with non-financial institutions, including
retail stores that maintain their own credit programs and govern-
mental agencies that make available low cost or guaranteed loans

to certain borrowers.
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REGULATION

As a financial holding company, Charter One is subject to regula-
tion by the Federal Reserve Board. Charter One is required to file
reports with the Federal Reserve Board and is subject to regular
inspections by that agency. Financial holding companies may
engage in a broad array of banking, insurance and securities
activities. The insurance activities include both underwriting and
agency activities, as well as title insurance activities, and are gen-
erally subject to state law licensing requirements. However, state
anti-affiliation laws have been generally preempted. The securi-
ties activities include both underwriting and agency activities.
Aside from activities expressly permitted under the Gramm-
Leach-Bliley Act, financial holding companies may engage in
activities which the Federal Reserve Board in consultation with,
and with the non-objection of, the U.S. Treasury Department,
determines to be (i) financial in nature or {ii) incidental to a finan-
cial activity, or activities which the Federal Reserve Board deter-
mines on its own to be “complementary” to a financial activity
without posing a substantial risk to the safety and soundness of
the depository institution or the financial system generally. With
the exception of our minor real estate development activities, the
list of permissible activities includes all current operations of
Charter One. We intend to comply with the Federal Reserve
Board’s divestiture orders with respect to these real estate devel-
opment activities, the time period for which may be extended
under the law.

On January 7, 2002, Charter One Bank filed an applica-
tion with the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (“OCC”) to
convert from a thrift to a national bank. The conversion was
effective May 7, 2002 and resulted in changing the Bank’s name
to Charter One Bank, N.A. from Charter One Bank, F.SB. As a
national bank, Charter One Bank is subject to supervision, regu-
lation and examination by its primary regulator, the OCC, as well
as the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

See Management’s Discussion and Analysis - “Capital
and Dividends” under Part 11, Item 7 of this Form 10-k, and Note 14
to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements under Part II,
Item 8 of this Form 10-K, for a discussion of the regulatory capital
calculations and compliance with regulatory capital requirements
as well as regulatory restrictions on cash dividends.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act - On July 30, 2002, President Bush
signed into law the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “SOA”). The
stated goals of the SOA are to increase corporate responsibility, to
provide for enhanced penalties for accounting and auditing
improprieties at publicly traded companies and to protect
investors by improving the accuracy and reliability of corporate
disclosures pursuant to the securities laws.

The SOA is the most far-reaching U.S. securities legisla-
tion enacted in some time. The SOA generally applies to all compa-
nies, both U.S. and non-U.S., that file or are required to file
periodic reports with the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act
(the “Act”). Given the extensive SEC role in implementing rules
relating to many of the SOA’s new requirements, the final scope of

many of these requirements remains to be determined.
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The SOA includes very specific additional disclosure require-
ments and new corporate governance rules, requires the SEC and
securities exchanges to adopt extensive additional disclosure, cor-
porate governance and other related rules and mandates further
studies of certain issues by the SEC and the Comptroller General.
The SOA represents significant federal involvement in matters
traditionally left to state regulatory systems, such as the regula-
tion of the accounting profession, and to state corporate law, such
as the relationship between a board of directors and management
and between a board of directors and its committees.

The SOA addresses, among other matters:

> audit committees;

= certification of financial statements by the chief executive
officer and the chief financial officer;

¢ the forfeiture of bonuses or other incentive-based compensa-
tion and profits from the sale of an issuer’s securities by
directors and senior officers in the 12 month period following
initial publication of any financial statements that later
require restatement;

¢ a prohibition on the sale of stock by directors and executives
during pension plan black out periods;

¢ disclosure of off-balance sheet transactions;

° a prohibition on certain personal loans to directors and
officers;

¢ disclosure of a code of ethics and filing a Form 8-K for a
change or waiver of such code;

* “real time” filing of periodic reports; expedited filing require-
ments for Form 4s;

° the formation of a public company accounting oversight
board;

° auditor independence; and

° wvarious increased criminal penalties for violations of securi-
ties laws.

The SOA contains provisions which became effective
upon enactment on July 30, 2002 and provisions which become
effective from within 3¢ days to one year from enactment. The SEC
has been delegated the task of adopting rules to implement vari-
ous provisions of the SOA.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Executive Officers of the Registrant-The executive officers of
Charter One, each of whom is currently an executive officer of
Charter One Bank, are identified below. The executive officers of
Charter One are elected annually by its Board of Directors to serve
until the next annual election of officers following the Annual
Meeting of Shareholders.

Age at Officer
Name December 31,2002 Position Since
Charles John Koch 56 Chairman of the Board, Prasident 1987
and Chief Executive Officer
Mark D. Grossi 43 Executive Vice President 1992
John David Koch 50 Executive Vice President 1987
Richard W. Neu 46 Executive Vice President and 1995
Chief Financial Officer
Robert J. Vana 53 Senior Vice President, 1987

Chief Corporate Counsel
and Corporate Secretary

Charles John Koch has been President of Charter One
Bank since 198¢ and was Chief QOperating Officer of Charter One
from 1980 t0 1988, when he was appointed Chief Executive Officer
of Charter One. In February 1995, he was appointed Chairman of
the Board of Charter One and of Charter One Bank. Mr. Koch is the
brother of John David Koch.

Mark D. Grossi is an Executive Vice President of Charter
One and of Charter One Bank, and has been responsible for retail
banking and branch administration since Charter One’s merger
with First American Savings Bank in 1992.

John David Koch joined Charter One Bankin 1982 and is
Executive Vice President of Charter One and of Charter One Bank.
Mr. Koch is responsible for the credit and lending functions of
Charter One Bank and has management responsibility for numer-
ous subsidiary corporations. Mr. Koch is the brother of Charles
John Koch.

Richard W. Neu is Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of Charter One and Charter One Bank. He joined
Charter One in 1995 following Charter One’s merger with FirstFed
Michigan Corporation. Prior to the merger he had served as
FirstFed's Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer.

Robert J. Vana has been Chief Corporate Counsel and
Corporate Secretary of Charter One since 1988 and joined Charter
One Bank as Senior Vice President and Corporate Secretary in 1982.

1mem 2. PROPERTIES

The executive offices of Charter One and Charter One Bank are
located at 1215 Superior Avenue, Cleveland, Ohio in a seven-story
office building owned by Charter One. Charter One Bank also
maintains an operations center in a single-story building and a
service center in a two-story building owned by the Bank and
located in Cleveland, Ohio. The Bank owns various other office
buildings including two four-story office buildings in Rochester,
New York; a two-story and three-story office building in Albany,
New York; a nine-story office building in Toledo, Ohio; a four-
story office building in downtown Canton, Ohio; a three-story
office building in Akron, Ohio; three two-story office buildings in
Detroit, Michigan and six two-story office buildings, three
three-story office buildings and a four-story office building in
metropolitan Chicago, Itlinois. Most buildings include space for a
branch office and various divisional administrative functions,

with any remaining space leased to tenants.




As of December 31, 2002, in addition to the Bank’s 461 banking
locations, Charter One Bank and its subsidiaries operated 26 loan
production offices in 11 states. At December 31, 2002, Charter One
Bank owned 258 of these banking locations and leased the
remainder. We operate 913 ATMs at various banking offices and
are a member of Star Systems (“STAR”), which provides our cus-
tomers access to ATMs nationwide. The lease terms for branch
offices are not individually material. Lease terms range from
monthly to 20 years.

1Tem 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Charter One and its subsidiaries are involved as plaintiff or defen-
dant in various actions incident to their business, none of which
is believed to be material to the financial condition of Charter One.
In 2002, Charter One filed stipulations of dismissal
regarding five claims asserted in previously disclosed court cases
related to its supervisory goodwill litigation, which have been
outstanding since 1995. As outlined in previous SEC filings on
Form 10K, Charter One and various predecessors had asserted
five separate claims against the United States of America for
breach of certain agreements involving supervisory goodwill and
capital credits. Based on the outcome of similar cases and related
damages, Charter One has determined that the cost of further lit-
igation of the five dismissed claims would likely exceed the
potential benefits.

1TEM 14. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
An evaluation of the Company’s disclosure controls and proce-
dures {as defined in Section 13(a)-14(c) of the Act) was carried out
under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and several other
members of the Company’s senior management within the go-day
period preceding the filing date of this annual report. The
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures
as currently in effect are effective in ensuring that the informa-
tion required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports it files
or submits under the Act is (i) accumulated and communicated to
the Company’s management (including the Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer) in a timely manner, and
(ii) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Since the date of
this evaluation there have been no significant changes in, or cor-
rective actions taken regarding, the Company’s internal controls
or in other factors that could significantly affect these controls.
The Company intends to continually review and evaluate
the design and effectiveness of its disclosure controls and proce-
dures and to improve its controls and procedures over time and to
correct any deficiencies that it may discover in the future. The
goal is to ensure that senior management has timely access to all
material financial and non-financial information concerning the
Company's business. While the Company believes the present
design of its disclosure controls and procedures is effective to
achieve its goal, future events affecting its business may cause the

Company to modify its disclosure controls and procedures.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, there-
unto duly authorized, in the City of Cleveland, State of Ohio, as of
March 14, 2003.

CHARTER ONE FINANCIAL, INC.

By: Charles John Kaoch
Director, Chairman of the Board,
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the fol-
lowing persons in the capacities and as of the date indicated
above.

Charles John Koch

(Principal Executive Officer)

Director, Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Richard W. Neu
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Director, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Patrick j. Agnew, Director

Herbert G. Chorbajian, Director

Phillip Wm. Fisher, Director

Denise Marie Fugo, Director

Mark D. Grossi, Director, Executive Vice President
Karen R. Hitchcock, Director

John D. Koch, Director, Executive Vice President
Barbara J. Mahone, Director

Michael P. Morley, Director

Ronald F. Poe, Director

Victor A. Ptak, Director

Melvin ]. Rachal, Director

Jerome L. Schostak, Director

Joseph C. Scully, Director

Mark Shaevsky, Director

Leonard S. Simon, Director

John P. Tierney, Director
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certifications OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I, Charles John Koch, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-k of Charter One

Financial, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circum-
stances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowladge, the financial statements, and other
financial information included in this annual report, fairly pres-
ent in all material respects the financial condition, results of oper-
ations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods

presented in this annual report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible
for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and proce-
dures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 132-14 and 15d-14) for the
Registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure
that material information relating to the Registrant, includ-
ing its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure
controls and procedures as of a date within go days prior to
the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”);
and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures
based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed,
based on our most recent evaluation, to the Registrant’s auditors
and the Audit Committee of Registrant’s Board of Directors (or

persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of
internal controls which could adversely affect the
Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial data and have identified for the Registrant’s audi-
tors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b} any fraud, whether or not material, that involves manage-
ment or other employees who have a significant role in the
Registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have indicated in
this annual report whether there were significant changes in
internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect
internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evalu-
ation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant

deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 14, 2003

Ry

Charles John Koch
Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)




CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
I, Richard W. Neu, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-k of Charter One

Financial, Inc;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circum-
stances under which such statements were made, not misleading

with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other
financial information included in this annual report, fairly pres-
ent in all material respects the financial condition, results of oper-
ations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this annual report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible
for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and proce-
dures {as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the
Registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure
that material information relating to the Registrant, includ-
ing its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure
controls and procedures as of a date within 9o days prior to
the filing date of this annual report {the “Evaluation Date”);
and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures

based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed,
based on our most recent evaluation, to the Registrant’s auditors
and the Audit Committee of Registrant’s Board of Directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of
internal controls which could adversely affect the
Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial data and have identified for the Registrant’s audi-
tors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b} any fraud, whether or not material, that involves manage-
ment or other employees who have a significant role in the

Registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have indicated in
this annual report whether there were significant changes in
internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect
internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evalu-
ation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 14, 2003

Richard W. Neu

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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WHAT DOES IT TAKE [

TO MAKE A GREAT BANK,

high earnings growth

innovative execution in retail banking

leadership in retail consumer lending

commitment to the communities.we serve
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